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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from Volume

       3       12.)

       4                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  All right, folks,

       5       we're going to get started.  I'm sorry, but we're on the

       6       record, we're coming back from lunch break.  We have

       7       taken a little extra time on the lunch break to try to

       8       allow everybody to have some time to eat, refresh,

       9       hopefully, and go through the proposed order of

      10       witnesses.  I understand -- my understanding is that, as

      11       we kind of try to reorder in order to accommodate every

      12       possible schedule that we can try to accommodate, that

      13       we may be close, we may not.  If we're at the point

      14       where we can come to some agreement at this point in

      15       time about order of parties, then let's do so.  If there

      16       are still some issues or questions, I'd like to go ahead

      17       and get going with the taking of testimony, realizing

      18       that we will all still be together for the rest of the

      19       afternoon to work through whatever we need to work

      20       through.

      21                 So with that preamble, let me ask for the

      22       preliminary matters before we continue with our cross.

      23                 MR. BUTLER:  I think we're in the second of

      24       your two choices, that we're close but not quite there.

      25       It probably does make sense to go forward with just the
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       1       order of witnesses we intend for this afternoon, and we

       2       will endeavor to work out the little wrinkles that exist

       3       on --

       4                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Does that cause

       5       a hardship or difficulty to any party?

       6                 Okay, then I think that where we left is for

       7       our staff to begin their cross of the witness.

       8                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, thank you, Madam Chairman.

       9                 MR. BUTLER:  Madam Chairman?

      10                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Butler.

      11                 MR. BUTLER:  Before we go on, I had asked to

      12       clarify something that Mr. Barrett had --

      13                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Staff, if you'll hold

      14       for just a moment.  I apologize.  Mr. Butler, you're

      15       recognized.

      16                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      17                      FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION

      18       BY MR. BUTLER:

      19            Q.   Mr. Barrett, you had testified in response to

      20       questions I think by Mr. McGlothlin concerning the

      21       amounts that comprised the $89 million of additional

      22       depreciation expense that's reflected on page 24 of your

      23       testimony as part of the components for the

      24       $1.044 billion rate increase for 2010, and I'd like to

      25       ask you if you have any changes to make to your
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       1       testimony concerning what the components of that

       2       $89 million comprise.

       3            A.   Yes, I do.  I'd like to clarify that in the

       4       $89 million figure that is represented as the effect of

       5       the new depreciation rates, it does in fact include the

       6       capital recovery schedules that are part of the

       7       depreciation study that's been filed as part of this

       8       case.  It is the complete impact of the new depreciation

       9       rate which include the capital recovery schedules.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  And so my

      12       understanding, Mr. Butler, for clarity of the record,

      13       Mr. McGlothlin, I believe that that was in response to a

      14       question that you had raised on cross?

      15                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes.

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Do you have any -- a

      17       little out of order, but that's okay.  We'll work

      18       through it.  Do you have anything that --

      19                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I believe, given the exchange

      20       earlier, I'll reserve the questions for another witness.

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Again, for

      22       clarity of the record.

      23                 MR. MOYLE:  And just so I'm clear, was that

      24       Mr. Butler's redirect, or --

      25                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  No, it was not.

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1441

       1                 MR. BUTLER:  No, that was simply clarifying

       2       the record.  No, I simply wanted it clarified at that

       3       point, because Mr. McGlothlin had asked that, if it was

       4       something that was indeed a concern for him and the

       5       questions that he intended to ask, I didn't want to get

       6       too far down the road before he had the opportunity to

       7       follow up.

       8                 MR. MOYLE:  Okay.  I was just a little unclear

       9       on what --

      10                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And again, and to make

      11       sure that Mr. McGlothlin, since it was a question that

      12       he had posed, would have the opportunity and we will

      13       have other witnesses that we can address.

      14                 Okay, Ms. Williams, you're up.

      15                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I'm back.

      16                 Before I begin, I want to note that all the

      17       parties have represented to me that they have no

      18       objection to certain exhibits included in Staff's

      19       Composite Exhibit List No. 35, and based on that

      20       representation, at the conclusion of Mr. Barrett's

      21       testimony, staff would like to go through and check off

      22       each of those on our list so that at the conclusion of

      23       the proceeding we can enter those into the record.

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  We will take that up

      25       at that appropriate time.
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       1                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Staff also has several

       2       documents that are not included in our composite list

       3       that I've previously passed out to all the parties, and

       4       the Commissioners should have them in front of them,

       5       that we would like to enter, and I'm going to start by

       6       dealing with those.

       7                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       8       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

       9            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Barrett.

      10            A.   Good afternoon.

      11            Q.   Now, I've placed in front of you a document

      12       entitled 2009 Approved Capital Budget, Other, as

      13       referenced on Hospital Association Interrogatory 279.

      14       That's also Late-Filed Exhibit No. 1 to your deposition.

      15       Do you have that?

      16            A.   I do.

      17            Q.   Are you familiar with this document?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   Was it prepared by you or under your

      20       supervision?

      21            A.   It was.

      22            Q.   Now, this late-filed exhibit asks FPL to

      23       provide the projects listed under the business unit,

      24       other, as referenced in FPL's response to South Florida

      25       Hospital Association's Interrogatory 279, does it not?

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1443

       1            A.   It does.

       2            Q.   And has anything changed that would alter the

       3       figures or projects that FPL has provided on this

       4       exhibit?

       5            A.   No.

       6                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Madam Chairman, I'd like to

       7       mark that as exhibit, I believe we're on 416.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Yes, ma'am.

       9                 MR. MOYLE:  This is Late-Filed Exhibit 1, is

      10       that right?

      11                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, that's correct.

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And we will mark as

      13       Exhibit 416 2009 Approved Capital Budget, Other.

      14                 (Exhibit No. 416 marked for identification.)

      15                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.

      16       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

      17            Q.   Next, Mr. Barrett, I've placed in front of you

      18       a document called 2009 Capital Variances to Budget,

      19       Other, as Referenced in REB 22.  That's Late-Filed

      20       Exhibit No. 2 to your deposition.  Do you have that in

      21       front of you?

      22            A.   I do.

      23            Q.   Are you familiar with this document?

      24            A.   I am.

      25            Q.   And was it prepared by you or under your
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       1       supervision?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   And this late-filed exhibit asks FPL to

       4       provide the projects listed under the business unit,

       5       other, as referenced in REB 22, correct?

       6            A.   Correct.

       7            Q.   Has anything changed that would alter the

       8       figures or projects FPL has provided on this exhibit?

       9            A.   No.

      10                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Madam Chairman, I'd now like to

      11       mark this one as Exhibit No. 417.

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Just a moment.  You're

      13       one step ahead of me.

      14                 Okay.  417, 2009 Capital Variances to Budget,

      15       Other, REB 22, do I have the correct document?

      16                 MS. WILLIAMS:  That's fine.

      17                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  We will mark as 417.

      18                 (Exhibit No. 417 marked for identification.)

      19       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

      20            Q.   And finally I have handed you a document

      21       entitled 2010-2011 Deferred Projects, which is also

      22       Exhibit No. 3, Late-Filed Exhibit No. 3 to your

      23       deposition, and this consists of two pages, I believe.

      24       Are you familiar with this document?

      25            A.   I am.
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       1            Q.   Was it prepared by you or under your

       2       supervision?

       3            A.   Yes.

       4            Q.   And this late-filed exhibit asks FPL to

       5       provide for each deferred or delayed project in 2010 and

       6       2011 the impact on rate-based accumulated depreciation,

       7       CWIP and depreciation expense, correct?

       8            A.   Correct.

       9            Q.   Has anything changed that would change the

      10       figures or projects that FPL has provided on this

      11       exhibit?

      12            A.   No.

      13                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I'd now like to mark this

      14       exhibit as No. 418.

      15                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  We will mark as

      16       418 -- is everybody clear?

      17                 Okay.  And 2010-2011 Deferred Projects?

      18                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, that's good.

      19                 (Exhibit No. 418 marked for identification.)

      20                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I've also passed out to all the

      21       parties what I think has previously been marked by FIPUG

      22       as Exhibit 386, just for ease of reference, so everyone

      23       can have it in front of them.

      24       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

      25            Q.   Now, Mr. Barrett, turning to your -- starting
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       1       off with your direct testimony, on page 19, lines 16

       2       through 18, you state that FPL has been able to reduce

       3       planned capital expenditures in 2008 by nearly

       4       530 million and has reduced its initial spending plans

       5       for 2009 by more than 450 million.  Is that correct?

       6            A.   That's correct.

       7            Q.   How much has FPL reduced its capital

       8       expenditures for the test years 2010 and 2011?

       9            A.   If I could give the context for those

      10       statements, the context for the $450 million reduction

      11       is the initial proposed budget at the beginning of the

      12       budget process to the final approved budget, so an

      13       apples-and-apples comparison, if you will.  I believe

      14       that is -- let me see which exhibit.  It is Exhibit No.

      15       386, I believe.

      16            Q.   Yes, that should be the one.

      17            A.   In total -- excuse me.  In total the 2010

      18       approved budget was $91 million lower than the 2010

      19       initial proposed budget, and as I explained yesterday --

      20       I don't remember if it was yesterday or today when we

      21       were discussing this document -- that's comprised of

      22       almost $300 million of reductions in the operating

      23       units, and then there were some additions, notably in

      24       the energy secure pipeline down under the project

      25       development category of other expenditures, and Turkey
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       1       Point 6 and 7 new nuclear expenditures.  So there were

       2       some new projects that were added in from the initial to

       3       the approved, giving a net total reduction of

       4       91 million, but I just did want to point out that there

       5       was a reduction of almost 300 million in the operating

       6       units in 2010.

       7                 And it's a similar story for 2011.  I believe

       8       you asked me about 2011 as well.  It's a bottom-line

       9       increase of $88 million, which, again, is about a $270

      10       million reduction in the operating units, and then the

      11       addition of some other projects down in the project

      12       development area of the budget here.

      13            Q.   So you would agree that in total for 2010

      14       there was a reduction of 91 million and in 2011 an

      15       increase of 88 million?

      16            A.   In total, I would agree with that.

      17            Q.   In total?

      18                 MR. MOYLE:  Madam Chair, could I interrupt

      19       just briefly?

      20                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Moyle?

      21                 MR. MOYLE:  Yeah, I would just move to strike

      22       the portion of the response to the previous question.  I

      23       think the question was to confirm essentially capital

      24       expenditures in 2010 and 2011, and the witness responded

      25       by talking about reductions in operating expenses that I
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       1       don't think have anything to do with capital

       2       expenditures.  I don't know that they were part of his

       3       direct testimony, and probably not appropriate.

       4                 MR. BUTLER:  Madam Chairman, may I respond?

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Butler.

       6                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

       7                 We can clarify with the witness if it's

       8       necessary, but I think what he was referring to was

       9       capital expenditures by the operating units as the

      10       company -- units such as power generation, nuclear

      11       transmission, distribution, et cetera.  I did not take

      12       his answer to be referring to operating expenses but

      13       rather to capital expenditures within those operating

      14       units.

      15                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Ms. Williams?

      16                 MS. WILLIAMS:  I think it's okay -- sorry.  I

      17       think it's okay to strike that.  I agree with Mr.

      18       Butler -- I mean, sorry, Mr. Moyle.

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Let try it this way:

      20       I'm going to ask Ms. Williams if you would re-ask your

      21       last question and I'm going to ask the witness, whatever

      22       your answer is, to give your answer and let's see where

      23       that takes us.

      24                 MR. MOYLE:  So we'll kind of start over, I

      25       guess, is --
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Yes, sir.  Every once

       2       in a while you need a redo.

       3       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

       4            Q.   Could you tell me, for 2010, how much FPL

       5       reduced its capital expenditures by for the test year

       6       2010?

       7            A.   For 2010 in total, the reduction shown on this

       8       sheet is $91 million, and as I was explaining the

       9       composition of that 91, the capital expenditures for the

      10       operating units, the business units, power generation,

      11       nuclear transmission, distribution and customer service,

      12       which really represent the fundamental operations of the

      13       company, were reduced almost $300 million, and then

      14       there were some specific project expenditures that were

      15       increased from the 2010 proposed budget to the approved

      16       budget, giving a net reduction of 91 million.  So it's

      17       the operating units' capital expenditures.  So we're

      18       talking about capital for all of that.

      19            Q.   Okay.  So, referring to Exhibit 386, for 2010,

      20       on the line entitled Total at the bottom, in parentheses

      21       it says 91 million decrease, is that correct --

      22            A.   That is correct.

      23            Q.   -- total?  And for the 2011 test year it

      24       indicates on the line Total on the far right bottom

      25       88 million increase, is that correct?
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       1            A.   That is correct.

       2            Q.   Were these amounts included in the revised

       3       revenue requirements?

       4            A.   I'm not sure what you mean by the revised

       5       revenue requirements.  The 2010 and '11 approved budgets

       6       are reflected in the MFRs.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Did FPL make any similar reductions

       8       with respect to expenses, number of employees or

       9       compensation for 2010 and 2011?

      10            A.   I don't have that information.  We went

      11       through the budget process for O&M as we did for

      12       capital.  I just have not prepared an analysis similar

      13       to this for those years.

      14            Q.   And that's fine.

      15                 Now, referring to Late-Filed Exhibit 3 to your

      16       deposition, which I believe is Exhibit 418, this shows

      17       the 2010 and 2011 deferred projects.  I want to refer to

      18       that document and also Exhibit 386, the one we were just

      19       looking at, where you indicated that FPL had reduced its

      20       capital expenditures by 91 million in 2010.  Are any of

      21       the deferred projects you listed on Exhibit 418 included

      22       in that -- in the 91 million identified in Exhibit 386?

      23            A.   Can you just clarify that, please?  I'm sorry.

      24            Q.   One moment.

      25                 Can I have you turn to Exhibit 418, and it's
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       1       titled 2010-2011 Deferred Projects?

       2            A.   Yes, I've got it.

       3            Q.   These projects FPL has indicated were deferred

       4       from the 2010 projected test year, correct?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   And are the amounts indicated here for these

       7       projects included in the 91 million of reduction in

       8       capital expenditures indicated on Exhibit 386?

       9            A.   No, they're not.

      10                 Just to be clear, Exhibit 418 reflects plant

      11       and service, accumulated depreciation, CWIP and

      12       depreciation expense, whereas the other exhibit is

      13       capital expenditures.  So I just wanted to be clear what

      14       you're asking me.

      15            Q.   One second.

      16                 Mr. Barrett, I'm going to back up to a

      17       question I asked you previously.  I asked if FPL had

      18       made any similar reductions with respect to expenses,

      19       and you said that you weren't aware of the answer to

      20       that question.

      21                 Do you know who would know about that?

      22            A.   No, what I said was we -- I did not prepare a

      23       schedule that looked like this schedule, but as we moved

      24       through the process, we did make adjustments to

      25       operating expenses as we were in the budget process and
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       1       finalizing the budget.  This schedule on capital

       2       expenditures was prepared as an exhibit to my testimony

       3       to make some specific points regarding the actions that

       4       we took on capital expenditures.

       5            Q.   Do you know what the exact numbers would be

       6       with respect to reductions in O&M?

       7            A.   No.

       8            Q.   Do you know who would know?

       9            A.   I just don't have the information with me to

      10       answer the question.

      11            Q.   Would it be possible to get the total decrease

      12       in O&M as a late-filed exhibit?

      13                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Or, Mr. Butler, is

      14       there another witness --

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  This is probably the right

      16       witness to cover the subject on.  As I say, I don't

      17       think he's done that specific analysis that's the

      18       equivalent to what's been marked as Exhibit 386.  We'd

      19       have to ask him as to the timetable and possibility of

      20       doing it, if that's the Commission's pleasure to have

      21       the late-filed exhibit, but I don't think there's

      22       somebody else down the line who would be able to put

      23       that together on -- the only thing that comes to mind is

      24       possibly that Mr. Barrett would be able to look into

      25       that before he returns on rebuttal.
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Well, let me do this:

       2       Ms. Williams, can you -- you've probably got it, but so

       3       that I do -- state again specifically what it is that we

       4       would be asking him to -- Mr. Barrett to supply?

       5                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  We would like Mr.

       6       Barrett to quantify the amount of reductions made with

       7       respect to O&M expenses for 2010 and 2011.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  And then let me

       9       ask this:  Mr. Barrett, when do you think you would be

      10       able to provide that information, realizing that you are

      11       on the stand for a little while longer?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  I would imagine, not knowing

      13       when this might be, but when I'm back up on rebuttal I

      14       would be able to address that.  Is that the question?

      15                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Madam Chairman, we'd be fine

      16       with doing that on rebuttal.

      17                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And is it the

      18       understanding of all parties that Mr. Barrett is coming

      19       back on rebuttal for combining and not combining --

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  It is.  So let me ask

      22       the Intervenors.

      23                 MS. BRADLEY:  To be consistent, we'd object to

      24       the late-filed and ask that, if it is allowed, that it

      25       be restricted to specifically what has been requested,
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       1       and that we be allowed an opportunity to review it in

       2       time to provide cross-examination of this witness if we

       3       need to respond to the witness.

       4                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  All right.  That is my

       5       under -- I'm sorry, Mr. Moyle?

       6                 MR. MOYLE:  FIPUG would like to, for the

       7       record, also note its objection primarily on the grounds

       8       that Mr. Butler said this is the witness that's supposed

       9       to have it.  He's, you know, filed his direct.  It's

      10       been in the record a long time, and this is, you know, I

      11       think supplementing their case-in-chief.  It's their

      12       burden.  It should have already been in the record.  If

      13       it's not, you know, we would object, and we have due

      14       process and a whole bunch of things sort of evolving

      15       around the ability to all of a sudden create a document

      16       that hasn't been created today that's all of a sudden,

      17       you know, presumably, going to be offered next week.

      18                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  My understanding of

      19       what has been requested is that it is a calculation, so

      20       the way I would have liked for us to proceed is to mark

      21       this request as it has been described as an exhibit to

      22       come, which will be 419 -- Ms. Williams, I'm going to

      23       ask you for a title in a moment -- and then we will

      24       approach it as I believe is consistent with what we have

      25       been doing throughout this proceeding, which is to try
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       1       to avoid late-filed, but if an issue arises, to deal

       2       with it as Ms. Bradley has outlined.

       3                 And so we will expect that to come in, for all

       4       parties to work with staff, and then to have it

       5       available when this witness is back on rebuttal, with

       6       FIPUG's objection so noted.

       7                 MR. MOYLE:  Right.  And I think -- and you

       8       have not been chairing -- I mean, my understanding is

       9       there has not been a ruling yet on any kind of late-

      10       filed exhibits, that the Attorney General made a motion,

      11       it was taken under advisement, but we don't have a

      12       ruling at this point.

      13                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And if I'm wrong, I

      14       appreciate the correction, always, and I may have

      15       misstated my understanding -- what I was thinking -- and

      16       I have not been chairing and nor did I want to, but

      17       sometimes we all have to pinch-hit -- is that there had

      18       been a late-filed -- a similar question that had arisen,

      19       and that the way we handled it was that it would come in

      20       during the course of this proceeding with the

      21       opportunity later in the proceeding, and if I have that

      22       wrong, then I will ask staff to correct me and I will

      23       thank you for the correction.

      24                 MS. HELTON:  Madam Chairman, I think the

      25       process that you have laid out for this particular
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       1       late-filed exhibit, which is not really a late-filed

       2       exhibit because it will be discussed -- y'all will have

       3       the opportunity to cross-examine on it when Mr.  Barrett

       4       comes back for rebuttal, is consistent with the

       5       Chairman's ruling on a previous, similar type item.

       6                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  That's what I

       7       was trying to convey.

       8                 Yes, Ms. Bradley.

       9                 MS. BRADLEY:  I would just note that, when we

      10       talk about late-filed, it's anything -- we're referring

      11       to anything that's filed after the deadline set in the

      12       prehearing order as the deadline for filing any

      13       exhibits, just to clarify what we're talking about.

      14                 MS. HELTON:  Well, understood, and I'm sorry,

      15       old practices are hard to break.

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Well, my phrase was

      17       "exhibit to come," so I'm going to stick to that one.

      18                 Yes, Mr. Moyle.

      19                 MR. MOYLE:  And we can go back and look at the

      20       record on this conversation, which I think will probably

      21       set us straight, but it was my impression that the end

      22       of the conversation was, go ahead and prepare the

      23       exhibit but no ruling as to whether it would come in or

      24       not, so that would -- you know, with the idea that it

      25       was going to be admitted as evidence subject to cross,
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       1       that ruling had not yet been made.

       2                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  You and I are saying

       3       the same thing, and if I am not being clear, my

       4       apologies, but what you are saying is what I thought I

       5       was saying.  So -- and again -- and I'm glad for the

       6       opportunity to clarify.

       7                 Okay.  So we have -- we're in the process of

       8       marking 419, an exhibit to come, to be titled --

       9                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Reductions to O&M Expense for

      10       2010 and 2011.

      11                 MR. BUTLER:  Madam Chairman?

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Butler.

      13                 MR. BUTLER:  Just to be clear on the record

      14       here what we're doing, what was done in 386 and what I

      15       believe we're going to be doing here, Mr. Barrett had

      16       compared what had been submitted by the business units

      17       initially as their capital expenditure budgets to what

      18       was actually approved as their capital expenditure

      19       budgets for 2010 and 2011, and that is, you know, the

      20       differences that are shown on that exhibit.  That would

      21       be the same thing that we would be doing here for O&M

      22       expenses.

      23                 Is that staff's understanding?

      24                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, that's what we want.

      25                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  We will look
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       1       forward to that from you, Mr. Barrett.

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

       3                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Ms. Williams?

       4       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

       5            Q.   Where were we?

       6                 Now, since the filing of your direct testimony

       7       in this case, has FPL taken any action or had

       8       discussions concerning overall employee compensation in

       9       response to the bleak economic climate?

      10            A.   Not to my knowledge.

      11            Q.   Given the economic recession experienced in

      12       Florida and the nation over the past year or more, could

      13       you explain how FPL justifies an increase in the overall

      14       rate of compensation for its executives for the test

      15       years 2010 and 2011?

      16            A.   I believe Ms. Slattery will be on the stand

      17       testifying to overall compensation.

      18            Q.   Since the filing of your direct testimony, are

      19       you aware if FPL has taken any actions or had any

      20       discussions concerning executive compensation in

      21       response to the economic downturn that aren't discussed

      22       in your direct testimony?

      23            A.   No, I'm not aware.

      24            Q.   Does FPL or FPL Group have any plans to

      25       outsource or contract out any work currently performed
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       1       by FPL employees of which you're aware?

       2            A.   Not that I'm aware.

       3            Q.   Just to clarify for the next few questions,

       4       this is since the filing of your direct testimony, I'm

       5       wondering if anything has changed, so I don't have to

       6       keep repeating myself.

       7                 Has FPL taken any actions or had any

       8       discussions concerning staffing issues in response to

       9       the economic downturn?

      10            A.   Not to my knowledge.

      11                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, could you define a

      12       little bit more clearly what you mean by "staffing

      13       issues"?

      14       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

      15            Q.   What I'm looking for is whether FPL has had

      16       any discussions or taken any actions about any kind of

      17       staffing changes or alterations that would impact the

      18       composition of the workforce at FPL.

      19            A.   Not that I'm aware.

      20            Q.   Okay.  I think I know the answer to this

      21       question, but I'm going to ask it anyway.  Have there

      22       been any discussions within FPL or FPL Group concerning

      23       layoffs or downsizing of its workforce in 2009 or 2010?

      24            A.   No, not that I'm aware.

      25            Q.   Does FPL or FPL Group have any plans for
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       1       decreasing the workforce in Florida specifically in 2009

       2       or 2010?

       3            A.   No, not that I'm aware of.

       4            Q.   Mr. Barrett, were you here for Mr. Olivera's

       5       testimony?

       6            A.   I was not here, no.

       7            Q.   Are you aware that he stated that FPL had

       8       implemented a hiring freeze?

       9            A.   I did not hear him say that.

      10            Q.   Are you aware that FPL has implemented a

      11       hiring freeze?

      12            A.   Yes.

      13            Q.   When does the company plan to lift the hiring

      14       freeze?

      15            A.   I don't know.

      16            Q.   The 2010 business plan used by FPL indicates

      17       that the company is going to add employees in 2010, does

      18       it not?

      19            A.   I'm not familiar with the document you're

      20       referring to.

      21            Q.   Mr. Barrett, Mr. Butler passed out a handout

      22       at the beginning of your testimony that shows a total

      23       requested increase in base rates of 1,300.3 million.  I

      24       believe it was entitled Revenue Increase Requested,

      25       Including KO-16.  Do you still have that?
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       1            A.   Give me just a minute.

       2                 Yes, I have it.

       3            Q.   Did you say you have that in front of you now?

       4            A.   I do.

       5            Q.   Okay.  This indicates a total requested

       6       increase in base rates of 1,300.3 million, correct?

       7            A.   The year total of 2010 and '11 is, yes,

       8       1.3 billion, roughly.

       9            Q.   And this amount does not include the increase

      10       in base rates FPL has requested through the GBRA

      11       mechanism for the West County Unit 3, correct?

      12            A.   That's correct.

      13            Q.   How much is FPL requesting for the West County

      14       Unit 3 through the GBRA mechanism?

      15            A.   I believe the annualized revenue requirement

      16       is 182 million.

      17            Q.   So what would be the total increase in base

      18       rates including this amount?

      19            A.   On an annualized basis with the full effect of

      20       the West County 3 GBRA, it would be 1,482 million,

      21       1.4 billion.

      22            Q.   And are you aware what the immediate increase

      23       in base rates was from the 2005 settlement that was

      24       previously discussed?

      25            A.   I'm sorry, can you repeat the first part of
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       1       that?

       2            Q.   Are you aware what the immediate increase in

       3       base rates was from the 2005 settlement?

       4            A.   I don't believe there was any increase in base

       5       rates from the 2005 settlement.

       6            Q.   Thank you.

       7                 You mentioned earlier in your testimony that

       8       amortizing the depreciation surplus over four years

       9       would harm the company's cash position.  Do you recall

      10       that statement?

      11            A.   I do.

      12            Q.   And the company has identified a $1.25 billion

      13       depreciation surplus, correct?

      14            A.   I believe that's the calculation of the

      15       theoretical reserve surplus.

      16            Q.   Can I have you refer to MFR Schedule D-9?

      17            A.   I don't have that with me.

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  We'll have to get him a copy.

      19       Hold on for a minute.

      20                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, thank you.

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Do we need to take a

      22       break?

      23                 Okay, good.

      24                 MS. WILLIAMS:  My fault.  I should have

      25       mentioned that earlier.
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  We'll learn as we go.

       2                 Mr. Butler?  Okay.  Let's take -- Mr.

       3       Barrett, feel free to stretch.  All of us will take five

       4       minutes, and again I do mean five minutes, and we'll get

       5       the documents in order.  We are in recess.

       6                 (Brief recess.)

       7                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  We are going to

       8       get started here in just a moment.

       9                 Okay.  We are back on the record.

      10                 When we took a short break, we were going to

      11       have a document provided to the witness.  It's my

      12       understanding that he has it, and so, Ms. Williams, you

      13       are back on cross.

      14                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.

      15       BY MS. WILLIAMS:

      16            Q.   Now, in front of you you have MFR Schedule

      17       D-9.  According to this schedule, FPL had an interest

      18       coverage ratio of 4.5 times in 2008, correct?  It's the

      19       top line under Historic Base Year, the second column.

      20            A.   Yes, the interest coverage ratio including

      21       AFUDC is 4.5 for the historic base year.

      22            Q.   And under current rates, FPL projects an

      23       interest coverage ratio of 4.58 times in 2009, correct?

      24       That would be in column 3.

      25            A.   Prior year 2009, yes.
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       1            Q.   Based on the rate increase requested in this

       2       proceeding, FPL projects an interest coverage ratio of

       3       6.04 times for 2010, correct?  That's in column 4 --

       4       excuse me, column 5.

       5            A.   The number in column 5 is 6.04, but I do want

       6       to just say I didn't prepare this schedule, so I'm not

       7       going to be able to tell you how we got there.

       8            Q.   That's fine.  I just want to indicate the

       9       2008, 2009 and 2010 interest coverage ratios that are

      10       based on my previous question that you had mentioned

      11       that amortizing the depreciation surplus over four years

      12       would harm the company's cash position.  That's the

      13       extent to which I'll be asking you about this MFR.

      14                 Now, assuming a four-year amortization of the

      15       1.2 billion theoretical depreciation reserve, what would

      16       FPL's interest coverage ratio be in 2010?

      17            A.   I don't know.

      18            Q.   As the V.P. of Finance, you're familiar with

      19       Standard & Poor's, right?

      20            A.   I know who they are, yes.

      21            Q.   Are you familiar with the financial ratios

      22       that S&P considers when assigning credit ratings?

      23            A.   Not all of them, no.  I have not dealt with

      24       them directly.  I believe Witness Pimentel could address

      25       your questions there.
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       1            Q.   I'm sorry, I didn't hear your answer.  You

       2       said you were not familiar with the financial ratios

       3       that S&P considers?

       4            A.   Correct.

       5            Q.   So you don't know S&P's guidelines for

       6       interest coverage ratios for a single-A-rated vertically

       7       integrated utility?

       8            A.   I do not.

       9            Q.   Okay, thank you.

      10                 MS. WILLIAMS:  That's all of my questions.

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Are there questions

      12       from Commissioners?  Commissioner Skop?

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      14                 Good afternoon, Mr. Barrett.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  In response to the FPL

      17       request for a rate increase, Public Counsel and the

      18       other Intervenors have alleged that a substantial rate

      19       reduction is more appropriate, and, as you know, the

      20       burden on FPL is to prove its case.

      21                 With that in mind, and given the two different

      22       stories that I'm hearing as I listen to the record

      23       evidence before me, I'm trying to gain a better

      24       understanding for each of the respective positions of

      25       the parties, and what I'd like to do, even though it's
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       1       somewhat redundant and there's been a lot of questioning

       2       asked, but at least from my perspective it's important

       3       that as a decision-maker I have a clear understanding of

       4       what FPL's alleging as the basis for its requested

       5       increase, and what I'd like to do is briefly review the

       6       chart behind you to better understand the basis for the

       7       proposed increase, and I'd like to start with the

       8       depreciation charges.

       9                 And with respect to that, can you just briefly

      10       explain -- and I know it's covered in your direct

      11       testimony, I've read through that, but briefly, in a

      12       snapshot, concisely articulate what that charge relates

      13       to or that proposed driver relates to?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Certainly.  The 266 million

      15       depreciation changes driver has three basic components.

      16       We are currently, through the end of this year,

      17       recording a $125 million credit to depreciation that

      18       would end at the end of this year.  So that's

      19       125 million in 2010 of additional depreciation expense.

      20       There is another component that is the cumulative effect

      21       on revenue requirements of having taken that credit for

      22       four years, and that's about $52 million.  The last

      23       piece, the $89 million that I referred to in my

      24       testimony, is the effect of the new rates for

      25       depreciation that the company's proposing as part of
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       1       this case when compared with the current rates that are

       2       in effect right now.  So if you take the 2010 plant

       3       balances, the difference in rates, multiply it out, you

       4       get $89 million.  So those three components together

       5       would suggest $266 million.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, thank you.

       7                 And I guess in this case before us Public

       8       Counsel and Intervenors, and as also just mentioned by

       9       staff, have alleged that FPL has a substantial

      10       depreciation reserve surplus, and I know that FPL

      11       alleges it's 1.25 billion whereas OPC alleges it's

      12       2.7 billion.  In light of the discussion, how does

      13       FPL -- in light of the discussion and assuming a surplus

      14       does in fact exist, how does FPL effectively rebut the

      15       intergenerational inequity argument advanced by Public

      16       Counsel with respect to depreciation?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Well, we do have several

      18       witnesses that are a lot more expert on depreciation

      19       than I who will be testifying after me.

      20                 As I understand it, we believe that the proper

      21       treatment is to take that surplus into account, that

      22       theoretical surplus, and reflect it over the remaining

      23       lives of the assets, and we review depreciation every

      24       four years and kind of pull up in four years and take

      25       another look and see if things are where we thought they
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       1       would be and make adjustments accordingly and move

       2       forward.

       3                 That's the extent of my knowledge on the

       4       subject.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, fair enough.

       6                 With respect to the reserve surplus, I believe

       7       in your testimony it was discussed, as well as another

       8       witness, that basically it's an accounting entry, not

       9       cash, so refunding it would essentially be a problem to

      10       the extent that it doesn't represent a pot of money.  Is

      11       that generally correct?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  That's generally correct.  It is

      13       just an accounting entry, it's not a, as you said, a pot

      14       of cash.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And it's also

      16       correct to understand that the prior collection that may

      17       have resulted in a depreciation reserve surplus, that

      18       represented cash flow that was actually used for

      19       operations?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  For operations or to reinvest in

      21       the capital needs of the business.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  From a ratepayer's

      23       perspective, assuming the surplus exists, why would that

      24       not represent the asymmetric risk argument to the extent

      25       that on the front end, for cash flow purposes, the
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       1       company has arguably overcollected the cash and maybe

       2       invested it along the course of normal operations, but

       3       when a surplus exists, it really is hesitant to want to

       4       provide the credit that I believe that Public Counsel

       5       and the other Intervenors are arguing should be applied

       6       and inure to the benefit of the ratepayers?

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I don't believe it's an

       8       issue of reversing that theoretical surplus.  I believe

       9       the disagreement has to do with over what period of

      10       time, and we've proposed, as I understand it -- and

      11       again, I'm not the witness on that particular issue, but

      12       as I understand it, we're proposing that to be over the

      13       remaining life of the assets.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, fair enough.

      15                 If the record evidence in this case does

      16       demonstrate, however, that a surplus exists, then why

      17       would FPL not want to amortize the excess reserve over a

      18       short period of time and decrease the new depreciation

      19       rates to further reduce the near-term rates for its

      20       customers?

      21                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I believe generally any

      22       accelerated amortization of a theoretical surplus is, in

      23       effect, going to be adding to rate base and it's going

      24       to be increasing the likelihood of a future large rate

      25       increase.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, I understand that,

       2       and I don't mean to cut you off, but it seems to be --

       3       this is what I'm struggling with, because, you know, I'm

       4       not an accounting expert, but, you know, I try and dig

       5       in and understand.  But it seems as though there's a

       6       circular argument, because you fall back to a future

       7       rate increase, but that's the same intergen -- you know,

       8       that effectively seems to be rebutted by the

       9       intergenerational inequity argument.

      10                 It's almost like, we can't do this because it

      11       will cause rates to go up later, but we don't want to do

      12       anything at all because, you know, we can't give it back

      13       now, and to me it seems to be, if you're asking to hold

      14       a credit or a surplus, then it does have those

      15       intergenerational inequities that come forth.

      16                 So I'm trying to get a better perspective on

      17       that because I'm struggling to -- you know, I hear it,

      18       but it seems to be like just a circular argument.

      19                 THE WITNESS:  Right, and maybe a depreciation

      20       witness would be better able to articulate it.  I do

      21       know that the fact that there is a theoretical reserve

      22       surplus actually provides a present benefit to customers

      23       because the rate base is lower than it otherwise would

      24       be, so any current customers are getting a benefit of

      25       that surplus.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, fair enough, and

       2       I'll reserve some of those questions for later.

       3                 Are you generally familiar with the FPL Group

       4       pension plan?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Not really.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Do you know if

       7       under that pension plan FPL Group -- and assume that the

       8       plan was overfunded.  To your knowledge, have they

       9       ever -- I know you said you don't have knowledge, so if

      10       you don't, I'll just reserve my question, but with

      11       respect to the pension plan, if it was overfunded, are

      12       you aware that, subject to check, FPL Group has

      13       transferred pension plan assets to fund claims

      14       associated with retiree medical benefits in the past?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of that.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, let me move on to

      17       the next item, which is inflation, if I could, and if

      18       you could briefly just do a snapshot as to what drives

      19       that component of the requested increase?  And I'm

      20       trying not to be redundant, but I'm trying to make sure

      21       I've got a full understanding here.

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Certainly.

      23                 Essentially all of these drivers are taking a

      24       walk from 2006, which was the test year in the last

      25       proceeding, to 2010, the test year in this proceeding,
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       1       and saying, what's causing the increase of a billion

       2       dollars of rate request.  For inflation, during that

       3       period there has been a compound effect of actual and

       4       projected inflation of just over 11 percent, and so

       5       really this driver, this 236 million, is a

       6       quantification of the revenue requirement impact of that

       7       cumulative amount of inflation.

       8                 So, said very simply, it's the effect on the

       9       revenue requirements, O&M and capital, due to about

      10       11 percent of compound effect of inflation through 2010.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  But the rates that the

      12       Commission's asked to set are forward-looking, and am

      13       I -- why would it not be appropriate just to put an

      14       adder in for depreciation on a year-by-year basis based

      15       upon the expected CPI instead of trying to get the

      16       compounding effect?  Am I missing something, or --

      17                 THE WITNESS:  I think I'm maybe not explaining

      18       it clearly.

      19                 The costs that we're putting forward in 2010

      20       are what we believe to be the appropriate costs for the

      21       business for 2010.  What I'm merely trying to suggest is

      22       that part of those costs are there because of the effect

      23       of inflation since 2006, so if we were to rewind the

      24       tape four years to 2006, we would expect there to be

      25       236 million less costs because of the effect of
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       1       inflation.

       2                 So it's really just trying to explain why part

       3       of the costs have increased since the last time we

       4       looked at costs.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, fair enough.

       6                 With respect to the next category, regulatory

       7       commitments, it's my understanding, looking at your

       8       testimony -- and I'll let you summarize it, but if you

       9       could just briefly explain that?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  Certainly.  This has to do with

      11       commitments that have been made either to this

      12       Commission or other regulatory bodies or other

      13       governmental agencies, and as I explained in another

      14       part of my testimony, a large portion of that is the

      15       revenue requirement increase from 2006 to 2010 related

      16       to storm hardening and other storm secure- related

      17       activities, and that was close to $100 million of that

      18       177.

      19                 There are other items that are in there.  I

      20       believe Mr. Stall talked about some of the nuclear

      21       commitments that we've made.  We had a series of

      22       investments to remediate some alloy 600 issues at the

      23       requirement of the NRC, and that's included in there.

      24       That's about $40 million.  And there are other fees that

      25       we pay for compliance to the regulatory bodies, and
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       1       those have just increased through the passage of time

       2       and for other reasons, and that makes up pretty much the

       3       difference.

       4                 So those are really -- those are items that we

       5       kind of view as outside of our control to comply with

       6       either regulation or, you know, legislative mandate.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Fair enough.

       8                 With respect to the nuclear component that you

       9       just mentioned that Mr. Stall spoke to, why would that

      10       not be essentially an infrastructure investment?  That's

      11       what I'm trying to better understand, because I

      12       understood the regulatory commitments, but the nuclear

      13       part of that seemed to be, you know, a justified expense

      14       of doing business, but perhaps in a wrong category.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Fair enough.

      16                 There are nuclear investments in both of those

      17       categories.  This specifically referred to the

      18       replacement of the reactor vessel head which had alloy

      19       600 issues, and there are some other components that

      20       Mr. Stall was a lot more capable of talking about than I

      21       am.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Fair enough.

      23                 THE WITNESS:  There are some nuclear

      24       investments down in the long-term infrastructure

      25       investments that had enabled us to extend the license
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       1       for an extra 20 years on those plants, and so we do view

       2       those as long-term infrastructure investments.  I just

       3       want to differentiate things that we chose to do for

       4       customer benefit versus things that we were basically

       5       mandated to do.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Fair enough.  Thank you.

       7                 Moving to the next category, with respect to

       8       growth, can you briefly explain that?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Certainly.  Again, just for

      10       context, this is looking from 2006 through 2010, and

      11       while we may be in a period of basically no growth right

      12       now, that was not the case in 2006 and '07 and even the

      13       early part of 2008.  In fact, we've invested over a

      14       billion dollars in our transmission and distribution

      15       infrastructure during that time with about 200,000

      16       customers added during that time, and so I'm looking at

      17       a four-year snapshot here, and so that is reflective of

      18       those investments that have been made for growth during

      19       the period.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, let's move on to the

      21       next category, which is infrastructure investment, and I

      22       think the majority of that, and I'll let you explain,

      23       had to do with AMI or advanced metering infrastructure.

      24       If you could --

      25                 THE WITNESS:  That is a significant component,
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       1       and actually the majority of it is nuclear-related

       2       projects that helped us to extend the license life,

       3       including the replacement of steam generators.  There is

       4       the AMI project that contributes to that as well, as

       5       well as some other information management projects that

       6       are being implemented that I believe Witness Bennett's

       7       going to be talking about.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And just briefly

       9       with respect to AMI, and if you don't know the answer,

      10       just point me to the appropriate witness, but has there

      11       been a -- there was a lot of discussion I think on day

      12       one with respect to the payback analysis to the extent

      13       that the AMI, the new advanced meters, were supposed to

      14       provide a benefit of decreased labor costs associated

      15       with meter readings and such.

      16                 Is there -- has there been any payback

      17       analysis viewed in terms of looking at when they would

      18       expect to see those reductions in labor costs and how

      19       those would translate through the current rate case?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  I believe that Witness Santos

      21       would be able to take you through the business case on

      22       AMI.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, thank you.

      24                 Let's go back to the next category, which is

      25       storm reserve accrual, and you've given testimony, I
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       1       believe, to a line of questioning, but -- I'm trying to

       2       remember who it was at the present time, but I'll skip

       3       that.  But anyway, why is such a reserve accrual

       4       necessary, in light of prevailing economic conditions

       5       and in light of the Commission's past history of

       6       allowing prudently incurred cost recovery necessary for

       7       storm-hardening, that the Commission had securitization

       8       and storm-hardening costs and such, but my understanding

       9       is that that reserve is a funded reserve, not

      10       necessarily just like a cash flow reserve.  So if you

      11       could elaborate on that briefly?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  I'll try.  We do have Witness

      13       Pimentel who can probably go through all of the policy

      14       issues around our belief in the storm reserve accrual's

      15       appropriateness.

      16                 But essentially we see it as one component of

      17       a comprehensive approach to storm cost recovery.  It

      18       clearly is not intended to be the only component.  We do

      19       rely upon the ability to come before the Commission if

      20       we have a catastrophic event such as we had in

      21       2004-2005.  It could be a big hurricane, a series of

      22       small hurricanes.  This 150 is really intended to

      23       represent the expectation of the annual loss or the

      24       annual cost of doing business in Florida, and you look

      25       at your system, this is the expected annual loss.  So we
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       1       feel it's an appropriate component of a comprehensive

       2       approach to handling storm cost recovery, other

       3       components obviously being the ability to come into this

       4       Commission and seek for recovery of amounts in excess of

       5       the fund, and then the other component, obviously,

       6       being, to the extent we don't need the $150 million in

       7       any given year, the ability to put that into a fund to

       8       then have that to draw upon for immediate liquidity to

       9       fund restoration events.  So we see it as one component

      10       of a comprehensive approach.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  With respect to the

      12       next category, economic conditions, can you briefly

      13       elaborate on that?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Certainly.  Actually, if you

      15       don't mind, could I get a exhibit up on the easel here?

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  This is Exhibit 18 in my direct

      18       testimony, and it represents one component, but the

      19       largest component, of what we've quantified as the

      20       economic deterioration impact on the billion dollars.

      21       And it represents essentially a $98 million reduction in

      22       base revenues in 2010 when compared to 2006.

      23                 So historically we have seen annual growth in

      24       customers and in usage per customer, so the top line

      25       sales historically have grown about three percent or so,
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       1       and that's kind of been the environment we've been

       2       operating in until this current economic downturn where

       3       we've seen growth basically stop and we've seen usage

       4       per customer decline.

       5                 What this exhibit indicates is, if we were to

       6       look at 2006 and just used kind of the average usage in

       7       2006 and then apply our historic growth rate, we would

       8       have seen an increase in revenues of about $350 million,

       9       353 on the chart.  However, because we didn't get that

      10       growth, about 237,000,000 of that didn't show up.  When

      11       you combine that with the lower usage per customer that

      12       we've experienced in large part due to the downturn in

      13       the economy, it's another $214 million of impact to the

      14       company, so the bottom line is we have about $98 million

      15       less revenue in 2010 than we had in 2006, a period in

      16       time in which we would have expected about 350 million

      17       more revenue, so it's been a decline of over $400

      18       million.

      19                 Now, all I tried to do in the driver analysis

      20       was suggest that the 98 million net reduction is very

      21       conservative to attribute that to economic conditions

      22       deterioration.  So that's the biggest piece of the 128

      23       is the 98 million of lower base revenues.

      24                 Then we also quantified just a couple of

      25       things that we could directly attribute to
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       1       deterioration.  One was the increase in pension expense.

       2       Our pension fund, as all equities in the market did last

       3       year, even though we did better than the market, we

       4       substantially underperformed the expectation for the

       5       fund.  So that has increased our pension expense, and

       6       Witness Pimentel can walk you through that, but that's

       7       about $20 million of additional expense in 2010 versus

       8       2006 directly attributable to a decline in the stock

       9       market.

      10                 And then there's been various cost increases

      11       in the customer service area related to the

      12       deterioration, whether it be collection -- additional

      13       collections activities and fieldworkers and things like

      14       that that deal with this deteriorating condition.

      15                 So those are the three principal components of

      16       the 128.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, so just in a

      18       snapshot, if I were to understand that, is that the

      19       company has reduced revenues but the same fixed expenses

      20       on less revenue, so it has to make up for that to meet

      21       its revenue requirement?  Is that a good

      22       characterization of --

      23                 THE WITNESS:  I think that's a good

      24       characterization.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  The last
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       1       category, and I'll skip the other two in the interests

       2       of time, productivity improvement, can you briefly speak

       3       to that?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Sure.  This represents -- and

       5       there's a couple of examples, I believe, in my

       6       testimony.

       7                 One, I'll just throw out an example of

       8       distribution restoration activities, and this is not

       9       related to storm restoration.  This is just the normal,

      10       everyday restoration, you know, lightning strikes,

      11       thunderstorms, whatever may cause an outage where we

      12       have to go out and fix.  If you were to take the cost of

      13       doing that in 2006, adjust it for inflation it to 2010

      14       and apply it to the number of customers that we have in

      15       2010, it would represent about $30 million more than

      16       we're projecting it will cost us to perform that

      17       activity in 2010, so I attribute that to productivity

      18       savings.  We're able to -- if you look at restoration

      19       costs per customer, adjusted for inflation, we've been

      20       able to drive out about $30 million of productivity

      21       savings.

      22                 There's a large piece of that, though, that is

      23       related to capital efficiency, and the way I would

      24       explain that is, the cash flow that's provided through

      25       depreciation we reinvest in the business.  Well, we've
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       1       been able to do that in a way that -- we've been able to

       2       maintain our system in such a way that we have actually

       3       been able to use less than the cash provided by

       4       depreciation to maintain and reinvest in the system, and

       5       that's provided a benefit to customers that I alluded to

       6       earlier, which is this -- you know, the depreciation

       7       that's gotten us to where we are today has allowed us to

       8       reduce rate base and provide savings to customers.  So

       9       that's a little over 100 million of that 178 million.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, just a quick

      11       clarification on that.  If FPL is funding operations

      12       from internal cash flow based upon theoretical reserve

      13       which represents a theoretical overrecovery from the

      14       ratepayers, and it has that source of funding available,

      15       why would it need such a high return on equity if that

      16       is a stream of cash flow available to the company for

      17       its operations?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  I can't comment on how that

      19       specific element affects the ROE.  I'd really rather

      20       defer that to Mr. Pimentel or Mr. -- or Dr. Avera.  It

      21       is one component of the risk profile of the company, and

      22       there are a lot of components that really play into the

      23       ROE.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, fair enough.

      25                 With respect to your position as vice-
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       1       president of Finance for Florida Power & Light, is part

       2       of your job functioning -- excuse me.  Is part of your

       3       job function managing the net income and earnings from

       4       the Florida Power & Light business segment?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Please clarify what you mean by

       6       "managing the earnings."

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Well, essentially, I

       8       guess, looking at the operating revenues over the past

       9       three years, those revenues have been flat or declining

      10       over the periods of 2006 to 2008, subject to check and

      11       based upon the data that I saw, is that correct?

      12                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  But net income expressed

      14       as a percentage of operating revenue has essentially

      15       been maintained constant at about seven percent, is that

      16       generally correct?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Subject to check.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I guess the point I was

      19       trying to get at is, in terms of the proposed rate

      20       increase and not scrutinizing the operating units, but

      21       looking at the compensation on the non-operating support

      22       functions, essentially, if reductions were made in those

      23       areas or scaled back, wouldn't that in fact enhance the

      24       net income of the FPL, Florida Power & Light business

      25       segment?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Reductions in operating expenses

       2       certainly would enhance the net income of the company.

       3                 I do think it's important to keep in mind -- I

       4       mean, you've asked me about net income kind of remaining

       5       flat.  During that period, we've invested billions of

       6       dollars into the company.  In fact, our return on equity

       7       has declined from about 12 percent in 2006 to a

       8       projected nine percent this year and 4.7 percent next

       9       year, in the test year, absent any rate relief.  So I

      10       think we need to keep in context that it's the return on

      11       investment that really is a measure of profitability.

      12       Having flat income while investing billions of dollars

      13       is not indicative of financial health.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I understand, but, like I

      15       say, at least from a regulated perspective, you know,

      16       that the regulated entities are typically viewed as

      17       basically stable and, you know, they generate a lot of

      18       cash for operations from other things to -- I won't at

      19       this point go down that path, but anyway, I'm trying to

      20       stay on point because we're time- limited.

      21                 With respect to the drivers in the previous

      22       chart, the drivers of the proposed increase in revenue

      23       requirements for 2010, this chart is basically a --

      24       basically assumes GBRA treatment for all new generation

      25       placed in service during the period of the proposed
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       1       rates, is that correct?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  You are referring to the 2010

       3       drivers chart, correct?

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  It does assume that GBRA was in

       6       effect as it was for Turkey Point 5 in '07 and for West

       7       County Units 1 and 2 in 2009.  So they're not part of

       8       this equation, and GBRA treatment for West County 3 is

       9       outside of this time frame.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And if this chart

      11       were not to assume that GBRA treatment was in effect,

      12       then one would reasonably expect that the infrastructure

      13       investment category would be much higher, is that

      14       generally correct?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I think that's where I

      16       would put those types of -- well, we could debate

      17       whether they were there for growth or there for

      18       infrastructure investment, but yes, they would be

      19       reflected on the chart.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Madam Chair, just a

      21       few more questions and I'll wrap up.

      22                 With respect to GBRA treatment, if I could

      23       refer you to page 34 of your prefiled testimony, please?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  I'm there.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And starting on
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       1       line 20, ending on line 22, you state that the GBRA

       2       mechanism is also subject to review and true-up based

       3       upon differences in actual versus projected costs at a

       4       new plant, is that correct?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  That's my understanding, yes.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Now, with respect

       7       to West County 3, there was an estimated cost in the

       8       need determination.  There will be an actual cost, is

       9       that correct?

      10                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And I'll refer one

      12       question to Ms. Ousdahl, because there seems to be some

      13       sort of a small discrepancy on the estimated cost, but

      14       that statement would generally not hold true for the two

      15       conversion plants, Riviera and Cape Canaveral, to the

      16       extent that there is no estimated cost on the basis that

      17       the Commission waived its rule requirement, is that

      18       correct, and therefore the numbers presented, the need

      19       determination -- the company would not be held to those

      20       numbers?

      21                 THE WITNESS:  I'm not familiar with that.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.

      23                 THE WITNESS:  I believe there were estimates

      24       provided in the need filing, I believe.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And on line 22 of
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       1       your prefiled testimony, on page 34, you state that --

       2       significant protection for customers by ensuring that

       3       only the actual final costs are built into rates, is

       4       that correct?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I guess I understand, you

       7       know, the perceived strengths of the GBRA treatment.  To

       8       the extent that it avoids regulatory lag, it avoids the

       9       cost of a limited proceeding or a rate case to basically

      10       adjust rates to reflect for new large generating units

      11       placed into service.  The problem I'm having, though,

      12       and I think is a fundamental limitation of that

      13       treatment, is that there does not really appear,

      14       contrary to your testimony, to be a good way for

      15       matching estimated construction costs to the actual

      16       construction costs to the extent that the GBRA is

      17       expressed in a first- year system revenue requirement.

      18       So you kind of lose the character of apples-to-apples in

      19       terms of actual -- I mean, estimated construction costs

      20       versus actual, because it morphs into a revenue

      21       requirement.

      22                 So I guess I'm wondering from my perspective

      23       on the GBRA treatment -- and I know the company's very

      24       concerned about having that treatment on a forward-going

      25       basis.  What I'm trying to ensure is that there's
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       1       adequate protection for the ratepayers to ensure that we

       2       can scrutinize cost overruns before those are just

       3       automatically lumped into a revenue requirement as a

       4       step increase adjustment.  So how would you respond to

       5       that concern?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Well, I believe the significant

       7       protection that we're talking about here for customers

       8       relates to protecting customers in the event that we're

       9       able to bring in an unit less than the costs that were

      10       estimated for that unit and approved through the need

      11       process, so there would be an automatic true-up for

      12       customers.

      13                 By no means did we mean to suggest that there

      14       was an automatic increase if we overrun that cost.  I

      15       think we fully accept that we have the burden to come

      16       before this Commission and seek recovery of any cost

      17       overruns, but it's the automatic nature of the flowback

      18       of underruns and its impact on revenue requirements to

      19       customers that we're referring to as the significant

      20       protection that's afforded.

      21                 One other point that could be made there is

      22       that to the extent that the GBRA is in place and goes

      23       into effect on the commercial operation date of the unit

      24       really incents the company to get that unit in when it's

      25       commercially viable, and if that means a month earlier
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       1       or two months earlier so that we can get those fuel

       2       savings to customers, we're not penalized by having to

       3       wait, you know, for base rates to come in.  So it really

       4       gives us a good incentive to be aligned with the

       5       customers' interests there to match up the capital

       6       revenue requirements with the fuel savings.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And I fully respect and

       8       appreciate that.  I mean, I think that's part of the

       9       regulatory process is having -- you know, avoiding

      10       regulatory lag.  I guess my concern is, is the making

      11       sure the ratepayer is protected to the extent that the

      12       length of time between the typical need determination

      13       versus the implementation of rates could be as long

      14       as -- I mean, a minimum three to four years, and

      15       sometimes a lot of things get lost in that period, and

      16       so long as there is, you know, a prudency review for

      17       looking at the actual costs versus the estimated costs

      18       and addressing the prudency of any excess costs, then

      19       that would seem to be appropriate, but again, during

      20       that length of time, I'm not so sure that that really

      21       gets done, and so that would be my only concern about

      22       the limitation that I would see for GBRA, all things

      23       being equal.

      24                 Just two final questions.  With respect to the

      25       solar projects that FPL is currently building consistent
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       1       with state policy and approved by this Commission, as

       2       vice-president of Finance, does FPL expect to make the

       3       election to take the convertible investment tax credit

       4       currently offered under the economic stimulus package to

       5       make that cost more affordable to consumers?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  I believe so, but I would ask

       7       you to ask Mr. Pimentel that question, as the CFO.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I guess wouldn't

       9       the vice-president of Finance of the operating unit make

      10       that call to the extent that it would be -- offer the

      11       most cost-effective alternative to ratepayers if you

      12       could immediately take 30 percent of the qualified

      13       project costs off the top of the proposed recovery

      14       versus taking something that would obviously benefit the

      15       company by a longer deferral?

      16                 And what I mean by that, just to put it in

      17       perspective, if you put 100 percent of the cost through

      18       a recovery clause or 100 percent of the cost into rate

      19       base, but you had the opportunity to otherwise get an

      20       immediate rebate from the federal government for

      21       30 percent of those qualified project costs, then it

      22       stands to reason the appropriate thing to do for

      23       consumers might be to make it more cost- effective for

      24       them by exercising that option to take the convertible

      25       investment tax credit?

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1491

       1                 THE WITNESS:  I agree, and I believe that's

       2       our position.  I would just defer to Mr. Pimentel to

       3       kind of walk you through the regulatory treatment of

       4       that and how you recognize that convertible ITC over the

       5       life of the project.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And then just one final

       7       -- or two final questions.

       8                 With respect to the chart that was used to

       9       illustrate how rates would actually go down in 2010, I

      10       guess part of that is based upon using fuel clause --

      11       fuel capacity clause overrecoveries to mitigate some of

      12       the proposed increase to rates.  Is that generally

      13       correct?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  We're referring to the exhibits

      15       that Mr. Olivera used?

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  I believe the fuel reduction is

      18       in part due to overrecoveries in '09 flowing back in

      19       2010, but the largest impact is twofold.  One is

      20       commodity prices coming down, but also the effect of

      21       more efficient units, West Counties 1 and 2 coming on

      22       line, providing those efficiencies to allow us to lower

      23       the fuel bill.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, fair enough.

      25                 Again, that overrecovery, again, if there were
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       1       a mechanism to provide relief to the ratepayer versus

       2       using it to not only use some of the -- I don't want to

       3       use some of the words that I heard the Intervenors use,

       4       but use it to mitigate the impact of the proposed rate

       5       increase, wouldn't it stand to reason that the

       6       appropriate thing to do would be to get that money back

       7       in the hands of the ratepayer?

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Well, as I understand it, that

       9       is what is happening through the approved fuel rates

      10       that will be in effect -- I say "approved" -- the

      11       proposed fuel rates that will be in effect for next year

      12       does reflect the flow-back to customers and putting that

      13       money back in their pockets.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And thank you very much.

      15       I know this took some time, but it's very helpful to me,

      16       and I'm again looking for the substance, and again the

      17       OPC and Intervenors have made some very bold assertions

      18       and I'm just trying to sort out whose argument is best

      19       supported based upon the record evidence.

      20                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you,

      22       Commissioner.

      23                 Commissioners, any further questions?

      24                 Mr. Butler, redirect?

      25                 MR. BUTLER:  Yes, a little bit of redirect.
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       1       Thank you, Madam Chairman.

       2                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

       3       BY MR. BUTLER:

       4            Q.   Mr. Barrett, two of the questions that you

       5       were just asked by Commissioner Skop and others about

       6       the GBRA mechanism, would you please just run through

       7       the, sort of the scenarios, the timing of how a GBRA

       8       rate goes into effect and the cost at which it goes into

       9       effect and the mechanism for truing it up thereafter?

      10            A.   Certainly.

      11                 The GBRA, as established based on the cost of

      12       the plant determined through the need filing, goes into

      13       effect when the unit reaches commercial operation, which

      14       is the same time at which there would be a, you know, a

      15       reflection in the fuel cost savings for the customer,

      16       and I believe it's a -- it's subsequent to that period

      17       where there is a final review of the actual cost that

      18       went into service for the unit compared with its

      19       estimated cost that that rate was based upon, and a

      20       true-up would be made at that point and then

      21       subsequently flowed back to customers through, I think

      22       it's through the capacity clause.

      23            Q.   At the point that the GBRA would initially go

      24       into effect, would the GBRA be calculated based on the

      25       estimated costs that were used in the need
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       1       determination?

       2            A.   Yes, they would.

       3            Q.   If the company's request for containing the

       4       GBRA mechanism were approved, would it limit in any

       5       respect the Public Service Commission's authority to

       6       review FPL's rates and to adjust them downward in the

       7       event of an overearning situation?

       8            A.   Not at all.  In fact, the Commission has at

       9       its disposal our monthly surveillance reports to

      10       monitor, and I'm sure they do monitor, our earnings

      11       situation.  And one point I think that -- we ran through

      12       a lot of hypotheticals today, and I think one point that

      13       may have gotten lost is if the GBRA is set based on the

      14       approved, let's say the approved midpoint of the ROE

      15       range, kind of irrespective of where the company's

      16       earnings were when that GBRA went into place, it's

      17       mathematically impossible for the GBRA to cause an

      18       overearning situation because the asset being added will

      19       only earn the midpoint of the approved range.  So if,

      20       for instance, we were earning above that prior to the

      21       in-service date of the GBRA, then when the GBRA went

      22       into effect, we would actually -- our overall return

      23       would come down a little bit closer to the midpoint of

      24       twelve five.  Conversely, if we were earning below

      25       twelve five when the GBRA went into effect, that asset
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       1       earning twelve would bring the total company, inched

       2       closer to twelve five.  So in no event could the GBRA

       3       itself cause an overearning situation to the company.

       4            Q.   What would be the impact on a company's

       5       earnings if the company puts a plan into service that

       6       does not have the GBRA mechanism available to reflect

       7       those costs in its revenue requirements?

       8            A.   Well, clearly the impact on a company would be

       9       the -- and let's use West County 3 as an example -- the

      10       inclusion of about $189 million of revenue requirements

      11       with no incremental revenue, so at that point the only

      12       recourse to the company would be to file a general base

      13       rate increase to collect those revenues to cover the

      14       revenue requirement of 182 million.

      15            Q.   You were asked by Ms. Griffiths early in your

      16       examination about the company's application for DOE

      17       stimulus bill grants.  Do you recall those questions?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   Would you comment on what impact the receipt

      20       of grant money, if indeed FPL does receive it, would

      21       have on either rate base or O&M expenses in the test

      22       years in this proceeding?

      23            A.   It would have no impact.  Those dollars, if

      24       awarded, would be applied to incremental investments not

      25       included in this rate filing.  I believe that was

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1496

       1       actually a requirement of the DOE, which was that these

       2       be incremental investments.  That's what they were

       3       stimulating.

       4                 So to the extent that we were to be fortunate

       5       to be awarded that grant, it would be go into

       6       investments that are not otherwise contemplated in this

       7       rate proceeding.

       8            Q.   Ms. Griffiths also asked you a hypothetical in

       9       which there was a utility that had a certain level of

      10       investment, continued operating, depreciated that

      11       investment, and the assumption was that there would be

      12       no further capital additions, no further investment by

      13       the company in its business.  Are you aware of any

      14       utilities in reality that operate in that fashion?

      15            A.   No.

      16            Q.   Can you an explain why that is not the case,

      17       to the best of your knowledge?

      18            A.   Well, basically the hypothetical poses a dying

      19       company.  It is a company that is no longer investing in

      20       the company, no more additional capital expenditures, is

      21       basically just kind of in a wind- down mode, and to my

      22       knowledge our -- we have invested in plant pretty much

      23       every year of our existence.  So it's an interesting

      24       hypothetical, but it bears no resemblance to reality.

      25
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       1            Q.   Thank you, Mr. Barrett.

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  That's all the questions that I

       3       have.

       4                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Commissioner Scop?

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

       6                 Two quick questions just to clarify a response

       7       that you gave to Mr. Butler, and maybe it's my

       8       fundamental misunderstanding of the GBRA treatment, but

       9       it's important to me, because what I thought I heard you

      10       say would probably resolve my inherent concern about one

      11       of the weaknesses of GBRA, which is only one in my mind.

      12                 But is it correct to understand that the

      13       response that you just gave to Mr. Butler, that only the

      14       estimated cost for a plant that would come into service

      15       would initially be included in that first- year revenue

      16       requirement and then it would subsequently be trued up

      17       later as a result of a prudency review for actual to

      18       estimated costs?

      19                 And the example I would give is, if the

      20       estimated cost in a need determination was

      21       $500 million for a combined cycle plant or combustion

      22       turbine, would only the 500 million go into initial

      23       first-year revenue requirements, and then if there --

      24       the actual costs were 600 million, then the Commission

      25       would have subsequent review of that true- up which
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       1       would be later adjusted?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Using your example, if the

       3       estimate were 500 million, then yes, 500 million is what

       4       would go into the first-year revenue requirements and we

       5       would have the opportunity to ask for your review and

       6       approval of the extra hundred if it cost six.  If it had

       7       cost 400, we would automatically lower that through the

       8       true-up provision so the customers got that.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I guess my

      10       concern -- and that's where I thought the perceived

      11       weakness might be, but if it operates in the manner in

      12       which you've just represented to the Commission, then my

      13       concern would probably be invalid, but what I've often

      14       wondered is whether the actual cost just goes right into

      15       the revenue requirement versus the estimated cost, and

      16       that was the basis for the concern I expressed.

      17                 Finally, one question with respect to Exhibit

      18       418, if you have that in front of you.

      19                 Now, can you briefly -- and I know the title,

      20       the description, but I'm trying to better understand the

      21       next page.  If you'd just briefly state what that

      22       represents?  Are those out-of-state projects that

      23       essentially have no depreciation or other cost impact to

      24       Florida to the extent that they're all negative numbers?

      25       They're all just kind of zeroed out.
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  No.  These represent

       2       distribution substations in our service territory that

       3       have been delayed.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  So

       5       those are names for proposed substation projects?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right, thank you.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  I believe we're at

       9       exhibits.  Mr. Butler, we'll start with you.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.  I will move into

      11       evidence Exhibits 53 through --

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Butler, I can't

      13       hear you.

      14                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry.

      15                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  That's okay.

      16                 MR. BUTLER:  I will move into evidence

      17       Exhibits 53 through 72.

      18                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Any objections?

      19                 Hearing none, at this time we will enter 53

      20       through 72.  Yes, 53 through 72 entered into the record.

      21                 (Exhibit Nos. 53 through 72 admitted into the

      22       record.)

      23                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Let me please get to

      24       the right place.  Okay.  Mr. McGlothlin, are you --

      25                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  415 was a good one, I move
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       1       it.

       2                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Any objections?

       3                 Hearing none, Exhibit 415 is admitted into the

       4       record.

       5                 (Exhibit No. 415 admitted into the record.)

       6                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  That brings us to

       7       staff.

       8                 MS. WILLIAMS:  We have quite a few.

       9                 First is from staff's composite exhibit list,

      10       item number 4, which is Staff's Fifth Set of

      11       Interrogatories, numbers 47 through 54.

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Hold on, if you

      13       would, just a moment.

      14                 Okay.  Item 4 from the staff composite

      15       exhibit, FPL Response to Staff's Fifth Set of

      16       Interrogatories, 38 to 54 and 56 to 63?

      17                 MS. WILLIAMS:  No, it's just the specific

      18       numbers 47 through 54.

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  47 through 54.  Okay,

      20       thank you for that clarification.  Any objections?

      21                 Hearing none, so admitted.

      22                 (Staff Composite Exhibit 35, Item No. 4,

      23       admitted into the record.)

      24                 MS. WILLIAMS:  One second.  I believe that the

      25       parties have already agreed to stipulate to this list,
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       1       but I'm going to read out so perhaps at the very end we

       2       could see if any parties object --

       3                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.

       4                 MS. WILLIAMS:  -- to any of these documents,

       5       if that would speed things along.

       6                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  We're all listening.

       7       Let's see where it takes us.

       8                 MS. WILLIAMS:  The second is from staff's

       9       composite exhibit list, item number 7, FPL's Response to

      10       Staff's Ninth Set of Interrogatories, No. 136.

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Do you want to go one

      12       at a time or as a group?  I was expecting a long list.

      13                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  It's still coming unless

      14       you wanted in between to see if we had objections to

      15       each one.

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, go ahead.  Speak

      17       slowly, but go ahead and go through the list.

      18                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Next, item number 10 from

      19       staff's composite exhibit list, FPL's Response to

      20       Staff's 12th Set of Interrogatories, No. 242; item 13

      21       from staff's composite exhibit, FPL's Response to OPC's

      22       First Set of Interrogatories, No. 81; item 14 from

      23       staff's composite exhibit, FPL's Response to OPC's

      24       Second Set of Interrogatories, No. 130; item number 16

      25       from staff's composite exhibit, FPL's Response to OPC's
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       1       Fourth Set of Interrogatories, No. 182 and 227; item 18

       2       from staff's composite exhibit, FPL's Response to OPC's

       3       Sixth Set of Interrogatories, No. 270 through 274; FPL's

       4       Response -- sorry.  This is item 28 from staff's

       5       composite exhibit, FPL's Response to South Florida

       6       Hospital and Health Care Association's Second Set of

       7       Interrogatories, Numbers 82, 83, 85 through 87, 89, 90,

       8       93 and 101.

       9                 The next is item number 29 from staff's

      10       composite exhibit, FPL's Response to South Florida

      11       Hospital and Health Care Association's Fourth Set of

      12       Interrogatories, No. 162; item 31 from staff's composite

      13       exhibit, FPL's Response to South Florida's Ninth Set of

      14       Interrogatories, No. 279; item 32 from staff's composite

      15       exhibit, FPL's Response to South Florida's Tenth Set of

      16       Interrogatories, No. 288; item 24 from staff's composite

      17       exhibit, FPL's Response to FIPUG's Second Set of

      18       Interrogatories, No. 9.

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  I'm sorry, could you

      20       repeat that one?  I think I was on the wrong page.

      21                 MS. WILLIAMS:  We're backtracking.  We're not

      22       going in order.

      23                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, Ms. Williams, I

      24       missed that last one.  Could you please repeat?

      25                 MS. WILLIAMS:  The last one is item 24 off of

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1503

       1       staff's composite exhibit, and that's FPL's Response to

       2       FIPUG's Second Set of Interrogatories, No. 9.

       3                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

       4                 MS. WILLIAMS:  FPL's -- this is item 25 from

       5       staff's composite exhibit, FPL's Response to Florida

       6       Retail Federation's First Set of Interrogatories, Nos. 7

       7       through 10.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Which was -- sorry,

       9       which number?  I apologize.

      10                 MS. WILLIAMS:  It's item number 25 from

      11       Staff's Composite Exhibit and they're numbers -- the

      12       interrogatory numbers are 7, 8, 9 and 10.

      13                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

      14                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Those were all discovery from

      15       080677.

      16                 The next is from 090130, and that is FPL's

      17       response to Staff's Third Set of Interrogatories, No.

      18       40, which is item 37 from staff's composite exhibit

      19       list.

      20                 And finally the three late-filed exhibits from

      21       Mr. Barrett's deposition which we've previously

      22       identified as 416, 417 and 418.

      23                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Let's start

      24       with the list of documents that Ms. Williams has gone

      25       through from Staff's composite exhibit.  I know that was
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       1       a lot of items, but we have a lot of items.  So any

       2       objection to any of those?

       3                 Mr. McGlothlin?

       4                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Just a quick clarification.

       5       These were the same documents that were provided to the

       6       parties in advance prior to Mr. Barrett's appearance

       7       here today?

       8                 MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes.  This list includes every

       9       document I handed you for your review prior to his

      10       testimony.

      11                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  OPC has no objection.

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

      13                 MR. BUTLER:  No objection from FPL.

      14                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  No objection.  So the

      15       list of items as described by Ms. Williams from Staff's

      16       Composite Exhibit 35 will be admitted into the record at

      17       this time.

      18                 (Staff Composite Exhibit 35, Item Nos. 7, 10,

      19       13, 14, 16, 18, 24, 25, 28, 29, 31, 32 and 37 as

      20       heretofore described, admitted into the record.)

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  That brings us to

      22       items -- the exhibits marked as 416, 417 and 418.  Any

      23       objections?

      24                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  None from OPC.

      25                 (Exhibit Nos. 416, 417 and 418 admitted into
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       1       the record.)

       2                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  And per our

       3       earlier discussion, 419 is a place-holder.

       4                 Okay.  Any other matters while we still have

       5       this witness with us at this time?

       6                 Okay.  Hearing none, thank you.  We'll see you

       7       back on rebuttal at some point in the future.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

       9                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  You're excused for the

      10       time being.

      11                 That brings us back to the question, I

      12       believe, of the order of witnesses.

      13                 MR. MOYLE:  Madam Chairman, can I just jump in

      14       briefly?

      15                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  You may.

      16                 MR. MOYLE:  I listened and I don't know that I

      17       heard Exhibit 386, FIPUG's 386 go into evidence.  It was

      18       one that we marked separately.  I think it was used

      19       extensively, but I just want to make sure 386 is in the

      20       record.

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  I believe that it has

      22       been, but let me look to staff.

      23                 MS. BENNETT:  On my checklist it does not show

      24       as having been entered in, so out of an abundance of

      25       caution, let's move it in.
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Well, then,

       2       whether it is or whether it has not been, it is so

       3       entered or reentered.

       4                 MR. MOYLE:  Okay.  And even if it has been

       5       entered, I think it was referred to during the testimony

       6       most often as 386, so it's probably a good thing to have

       7       it in.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  So be it.  Thank you

       9       for asking.

      10                 (Exhibit No. 386 admitted into the record.)

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Back to the

      12       issue, I think, of order of witnesses.  My understanding

      13       is that the next witness is Ms. Santos?

      14                 MR. BUTLER:  Right.

      15                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, then let's take

      16       a short break while we switch out the witnesses and any

      17       documents that are needed.  If we can go ahead and take

      18       care of that, let's do, and I guess, when we come back,

      19       I would like, if it's possible, for the Intervenors to

      20       give me the list in the order that you would -- are

      21       requesting to do cross, and we will come back at five

      22       minutes after 4:00.  We're on a break.

      23                 (Brief recess.)

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  We are back on the

      25       record, and when we took a break to move into the next
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       1       witness, I had asked Mr. Beck, can you speak to me about

       2       the requested order for Intervenors on cross for this

       3       witness?

       4                 MR. BECK:  Commissioner, I do not have that

       5       list.  I'm not sure what the order is.  We'll see if we

       6       can find out.

       7                 MS. CLARK:  Commissioner Edgar, in the

       8       meantime, would you like me to cover the order of the

       9       witnesses?

      10                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Actually, no, because

      11       what I said when we went on break was that when we came

      12       back at 4:05 that I would ask for the order that the

      13       Intervenors were going to request, and that's where I'd

      14       like to start.

      15                 MR. BECK:  For this witness?

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Yes.

      17                 MR. BECK:  We're going to start with the

      18       Hospital Association, followed by me, followed by FIPUG.

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And then the Attorney

      20       General's Office and then FIPUG?

      21                 MS. KAUFMAN:  No.

      22                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Oh, FIPUG and then the

      23       Attorney General's Office, okay.

      24                 MR. BECK:  And then the Retail --

      25                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And then the Retail
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       1       Federation, and I guess that will conclude until we go

       2       to staff.

       3                 Okay.  Have I missed anybody?

       4                 Okay, all right.

       5                 Okay, Ms. Clark?

       6                 MS. CLARK:  Yes.  This is what we have worked

       7       out regarding the order of witnesses for today.

       8                 Ms. Santos is here on her direct.  I guess in

       9       the unlikely event we would get beyond her today, then

      10       Mr. Bennett would go.  All those listed on Friday on my

      11       list, which were Spoor, Harris, Ousdahl, Emder, direct

      12       and rebuttal, Deaton, anyone who doesn't get taken up

      13       today gets moved to Wednesday afternoon, and then on

      14       Monday we will start with South Florida Hospital, Baron,

      15       and then OPC, Pous, I've got Pous, if I've got that

      16       right, and then Dismukes, then Brown, and Lawton for OPC

      17       as well.  However, we will take up Witness Spoor at

      18       3:00 p.m. on Monday, regardless of whether we are

      19       finished with the Intervenors' witnesses.

      20                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, I think I have

      21       that.

      22                 And from the Intervenors, is that your

      23       understanding of the results of the discussions that

      24       have taken place as to the order of witness?

      25                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Yes, ma'am.
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, and staff?

       2                 MS. BENNETT:  That's fine with staff.

       3                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And that works as far

       4       as we know at this point in time for where we are?

       5                 MS. BENNETT:  Yes.

       6                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, so with all

       7       of -- I'm sorry, I'm very tired.  I've forgotten the

       8       word, but with the understanding that at any point in

       9       time I realize something may change, if so, we will

      10       address it at that point in time, but as of now we have

      11       a plan.

      12                 MS. CLARK:  Commissioner Edgar, we probably

      13       should also go Wednesday a.m., because that's part of

      14       what we've worked out.

      15                 And on Wednesday we would start with Baudino,

      16       I believe, and then Kollen.  Both of those are South

      17       Florida Hospital, and then Pollock from FIPUG, and then

      18       we would start back with FPL's witnesses on Wednesday.

      19       Wednesday p.m. that would start with Witness Clark and

      20       to be followed by the rebuttal of Witness Stall.

      21                 And I think really sort of to go beyond that,

      22       it's --

      23                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Optimistic.

      24                 MS. CLARK:  Yes.

      25                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  So we'll leave it

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1510

       1       there.

       2                 MS. CLARK:  Thank you.

       3                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  So in my, what

       4       I hope is temporary capacity as chairing this

       5       proceeding, we will consider that we have a plan.  If

       6       something comes up, I would ask, of course, all parties

       7       to work together and to work with your staff and then we

       8       will address it at that point in time.

       9                 Any other matter before we proceed into the

      10       next witness's testimony?

      11                 Hearing none, Mr. Butler, your witness.

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.  I

      13       would call Marlene Santos to the stand, and Ms. Santos,

      14       were you sworn previously?

      15                 MS. SANTOS:  No, I was not.

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, let's do that.

      17       Stand with me and raise your right hand.  Thank you.

      18       Whereupon,

      19                          MARLENE M. SANTOS

      20       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power &

      21       Light Company and, having been duly sworn, was examined

      22       and testified as follows:

      23                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      24       BY MR. BUTLER:

      25            Q    Would you please state your full name and
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       1       business address for the record?

       2            A    Marlene M. Santos, 9250 West Flagler Street,

       3       Miami, Florida.

       4            Q    By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

       5            A    By Florida Power & Light, as vice-president of

       6       Customer Service.

       7            Q    Have you prepared and caused to be filed 57

       8       pages of prefiled direct testimony in this proceeding?

       9            A    Yes.

      10            Q    Do you have any changes or corrections to make

      11       to your testimony?

      12            A    I do not.

      13            Q    If I were to ask you the questions contained

      14       in that testimony today, would your answers be the same?

      15            A    Yes.

      16                 MR. BUTLER:  Madam Chairman, I would ask that

      17       Ms. Santos' prefiled direct testimony be inserted into

      18       the record as though read.

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  The prefiled direct

      20       testimony will be inserted into the record as though

      21       read.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

      23       BY MR. BUTLER:

      24            Q    Ms. Santos, attached to your direct testimony,

      25       do you have three exhibits identified as MMS-1 through
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       1       MMS-3?

       2            A    Yes.

       3                 MR. BUTLER:  Madam Chairman, these have been

       4       premarked for identification as Exhibits 73 through 75.

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  So noted.  Thank you.

       6                 (Exhibit Nos. 73 through 75 marked for

       7       identification.)

       8

       9

      10

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. BUTLER:

       2            Q    Would you please summarize your direct

       3       testimony, Ms. Santos?

       4            A    Sure.

       5                 Good afternoon, Commissioners.  As vice-

       6       president of Customer Services, I oversee the

       7       development and implementation of programs and policies

       8       in the areas of care centers, billing, payment

       9       processing, field operations, credit and collections.

      10                 In all of these areas FPL's performance is

      11       excellent and low-cost.  We have been recognized with

      12       several awards for providing superior service, including

      13       the prestigious Service One award from P.A. Consulting

      14       Group, a leading management systems and technology

      15       consulting firm.  Last year marked the fifth consecutive

      16       year we received the award, which recognizes utilities

      17       that provide exceptional service as determined by 24

      18       objective measures in the areas I oversee.  This has

      19       been accomplished through several strategies, including

      20       the use of leading edge technology to further enhance

      21       the efficiency and accessibility of our care centers, a

      22       focus on benchmarking and surveying our customers to

      23       continuously improve performance metrics, having an

      24       effective complaint resolution process, and providing

      25       various billing, payment and on-line self-service
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       1       options.

       2                 We recognize that the economy is creating a

       3       hardship for some of our customers and are committed to

       4       doing all we can for customers in need while maintaining

       5       policies that treat all customers fairly.  We have

       6       created our Care To Share Fund which, since inception,

       7       has provided nearly 11 and a half million dollars to

       8       55,000 Florida families in need.  We have partnered with

       9       social service agencies to process over $15.6 million of

      10       assistance payments in 2008.  We have co-sponsored the

      11       creation of a statewide collaboration of stakeholders

      12       working to find ways to better serve Florida's low

      13       income and senior customers, and are providing bill

      14       management solutions throughout the communities we serve

      15       that are custom-tailored to low income customers.  We

      16       have been recognized as a leader within the utility

      17       industry for our efforts on behalf of customers in need.

      18                 FPL not only works hard to provide superior

      19       service but also maintains a low-cost and efficient

      20       customer service operation.  In the 2008 P.A. Consulting

      21       Benchmarking Study, FPL ranks first quartile in several

      22       cost measures.  We ranked first quartile in cost per

      23       customer in the areas of care center, billing and

      24       payment processing.  We also ranked first quartile in

      25       minimizing our debt as a percent of revenue, which is a
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       1       result of our use of statistical modeling, standardized

       2       processes and fair and consistent practices.

       3                 Because we have a low-cost operation, it has

       4       been more than 20 years since there has been an

       5       opportunity to evaluate the cost basis for our service

       6       charges.  FPL is requesting to adjust the service

       7       charges to more closely reflect the cost of providing

       8       these services.  In addition, we are requesting to

       9       establish a minimum late-payment charge that will

      10       provide the appropriate incentive for customers to

      11       improve payment behavior while benefiting all customers.

      12                 We not only want to have excellent service and

      13       low costs today, but we also want to secure benefits for

      14       our customers in the future.  That's why FPL is

      15       investing in the Advanced Metering Infrastructure, or

      16       AMI, project.  AMI will create a smarter and more

      17       efficient delivery system, provide operational savings

      18       to our mission and allow for several service

      19       improvements, which include reducing estimated bills and

      20       meter reading errors, giving customers access to daily

      21       and hourly energy consumption data, identifying outages

      22       faster and more precisely, expediting the connect and

      23       disconnect process, and creating a safer work

      24       environment by eliminating the need to enter customers'

      25       yards.  AMI will also enable adoption by customers of
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       1       innovative, efficient technologies in the future.

       2                 So, in summary, FPL provides excellent,

       3       responsive service at a low cost, and we are investing

       4       now to provide long-term benefits for our customers in

       5       the future.

       6                 This concludes the summary of my direct

       7       testimony.

       8            Q    Thank you, Ms. Santos.

       9                 MR. BUTLER:  I tender the witness for cross-

      10       examination.

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

      12                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      13       BY MS. SPINA:

      14            Q    Good afternoon, Ms. Santos.  My name is

      15       Jennifer Spina.  I'm one of the attorneys representing

      16       the South Florida Hospital and Healthcare Association.

      17       How are you?

      18            A    Good, thank you.

      19            Q    You're familiar with FPL's implementation of

      20       the Advanced Metering Infrastructure, also known as AMI,

      21       or Smart Meters, correct?

      22            A    Yes.

      23            Q    And FPL's been focusing on AMI solutions for

      24       several years now, correct?

      25            A    Yes, we have been studying AMI solutions for
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       1       several years.

       2            Q    And that work has included both meter and

       3       infrastructure issues, correct?

       4            A    The AMI metering -- you need a communication

       5       infrastructure in order for the AMI to work, if that's

       6       what you're referring to, yes.

       7            Q    And in fact you've already tested various AMI

       8       solutions, have you not?

       9            A    Yes, we have.

      10            Q    You agree that installation and use of Smart

      11       Meters will result in certain operational efficiencies,

      12       do you not?

      13            A    Yes.

      14            Q    For example, Smart Meters have remote reading,

      15       connection and disconnection capabilities, correct?

      16            A    Yes.

      17            Q    They also could indicate if there has been an

      18       outage or a theft of electricity, correct?

      19            A    Yes.

      20            Q    And these types of operational efficiences

      21       will result in savings to FPL, won't they?

      22            A    Yes, they will.

      23            Q    In fact, the operational efficiences

      24       associated with remote meter reading is one of the

      25       primary sources of Smart Meter-related savings, correct?
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       1            A    Can you repeat that?  You were going really

       2       fast.  I just want to be sure.

       3            Q    I said the operational efficiencies associated

       4       with remote meter reading is one of the primary sources

       5       of Smart Meter-related savings, correct?

       6            A    Yes, that is correct.

       7            Q    And just to be clear, that includes both

       8       savings from salary expenses for the meter readers and

       9       the general mileage costs, correct?

      10            A    Yes, that is correct.

      11            Q    And the large-scale AMI deployment is planned

      12       to begin later in 2009 and run through 2013, correct?

      13            A    That is correct.

      14            Q    And this deployment will ultimately replace

      15       approximately 4.3 million meters, correct?

      16            A    Yes, that is correct.

      17            Q    And FPL will deploy 170,000 Smart Meters

      18       during the 2009 calendar year, correct?

      19            A    That is the plan that we put into this rate

      20       case filing.  We're looking at possibly doing a little

      21       bit less than that this year.

      22            Q    And FPL will deploy approximately 1.1 million

      23       Smart Meters during the 2010 calendar year, correct?

      24            A    Let me get my numbers and make sure.

      25                 Yes, that is correct.
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       1            Q    And FPL will also deploy approximately

       2       1.1 million Smart Meters during the 2011 calendar year,

       3       correct?

       4            A    Yes.

       5            Q    And also in the 2012 calendar year?

       6            A    Yes.

       7            Q    And then in the 2013 calendar year, FPL is

       8       planning to deploy approximately 900,000 Smart Meters,

       9       correct?

      10            A    Yes, that is correct.

      11            Q    Now, the total cost of the project includes

      12       the integrated meter and installation, network field

      13       infrastructure installation, software integration,

      14       software license fees and maintenance, servers,

      15       emergency repairs on electric service during

      16       installation, customer communications mailouts and

      17       operations, correct?

      18            A    That sounds like the right list.

      19            Q    And the total capital cost and cumulative O&M

      20       through 2013 is approximately 645 million and 34 million

      21       respectively, correct?

      22            A    Yes, that's correct.

      23            Q    Now, FPL has deployed Smart Meters prior to

      24       2009, correct?

      25            A    Yes.
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       1            Q    For example, FPL deployed approximately 50,000

       2       Smart Meters in 2005, didn't they?

       3            A    Yes, we have deployed -- that's correct.  We

       4       also deployed about 100,000 meters in the 2007-2008 time

       5       period, and those are working today.

       6            Q    Okay, you anticipated my next question.

       7                 In your -- FPL is currently reading and

       8       billing accounts associated with those Smart Meters

       9       remotely, isn't it?

      10            A    Yes, we are.

      11            Q    And just one more question, actually.  Do you

      12       know whether the Smart Meters come with a warranty from

      13       the vendors?

      14            A    Yes, they do.  I can't tell you the details of

      15       the warranty, but yes, they do come with a warranty.

      16            Q    Okay, thank you very much.

      17                 MS. SPINA:  That's all I have.

      18                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Beck?

      19                 MR. BECK:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      20                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      21       BY MR. BECK:

      22            Q    Good afternoon, Ms. Santos.

      23            A    Good afternoon.

      24            Q    Ms. Santos, you've been vice-president of

      25       Customer Service for Florida Power & Light since January
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       1       of 2005, is that right?

       2            A    That is correct.

       3            Q    Until March of this year, you were also

       4       president of FPL Energy Services, were you not?

       5            A    Yes, I was.

       6            Q    And that's an unregulated affiliate of Florida

       7       Power & Light, the regulated company?

       8            A    It's an unregulated subsidiary of FPL Group

       9       Capital.

      10            Q    Okay.  And it's affiliated with Florida Power

      11       & Light Company, is it not?

      12            A    Yes, it is an affiliate of Florida Power &

      13       Light.

      14            Q    So during the time period of January 2005

      15       through March of 2009, you were both an officer of the

      16       regulated utility and at the same time were president of

      17       affiliate FPL Energy Services, is that right?

      18            A    That is correct.

      19            Q    And in March of 2009, Eric Silagy became

      20       president of Florida Power & Light Energy Services?

      21            A    Yes, Eric Silagy became president of FPL

      22       Energy Service in March of this year.

      23            Q    And he is also an officer of the Florida Power

      24       & Light utility company, is he not?

      25            A    Yes, he is.
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       1            Q    Have you also held other -- officer positions

       2       with other affiliated companies of Florida Power &

       3       Light?

       4            A    Yes, I have.

       5            Q    What are they?  Would you describe them,

       6       please?

       7            A    I'll have to get my notes, because they -- so

       8       understand Florida Power & Light Company, this gets a

       9       little bit confusing because most of these companies

      10       that I'll talk to you about are companies that haven't

      11       had any transactions in many years.  So they're

      12       companies that exist but really haven't had any

      13       transactions, so -- but I'll go ahead and tell you the

      14       information.

      15                 So one of them is called FPL Intersys, Inc.,

      16       and I have been president and director of that company.

      17       Another one is FPL Energy Services II, Inc., and have

      18       been president of that company.  Then there's FPL

      19       Services, the general partnership.  That one does not

      20       have officers because those other two report to it.  You

      21       may have seen that under the organizational structure,

      22       Mr. Beck.  I'm not sure what you're looking at.

      23                 And then there's FPL Services, LLC, and I have

      24       also been president of that company.

      25            Q    And do the --
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       1            A    All those companies report up to FPL, so those

       2       are all part of FPL, and so those all are consolidated.

       3       They're not companies that we look at separately,

       4       individually.  They don't have books and, you know, and

       5       records individually.  They all roll up into one under

       6       FPL.

       7            Q    Okay.  Is that -- okay.  The companies you

       8       just mentioned all go up to FPL?

       9            A    Yes, they do.

      10            Q    But is that also true for FPL Energy Services?

      11            A    No, FPL Energy Services rolls up to FPL Group

      12       Capital, which rolls up to FPL Group.

      13            Q    And I forgot to ask you earlier, can you give

      14       me the dates that you were president of FPL Energy

      15       Services?

      16            A    Of FPL Services, it would have been from

      17       January of 2005 through March of 2009.

      18            Q    And you were also a director of FPL Energy

      19       Services, were you not?

      20            A    Yes.

      21            Q    And what were the dates of that?

      22            A    It would be the same dates.

      23            Q    Okay.  When the presidency of FPL Energy

      24       Services shifted to Mr. Silagy, did you take on any

      25       other additional responsibilities in other areas?
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       1            A    No, I did not.

       2            Q    Okay.  Was your compensation changed at the

       3       time of the shift of presidency?

       4            A    No.  No, it was not.

       5            Q    During the time period while you were both

       6       vice-president of Customer Services of the utility which

       7       are now, and the president of FPL Energy Services, was

       8       your salary allocated between the companies in some way?

       9            A    Yes, it was.

      10            Q    How was that determined?

      11            A    Another witness will have to answer that for

      12       you.  I know that my salary was allocated, but I believe

      13       Witness Ousdahl would be the one to talk about that, or

      14       Slattery.  I think I might have to ask my counsel, I'm

      15       not sure which of those would have that information, but

      16       one of those would have that information.

      17            Q    FPL Energy Services and the utility --

      18                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Butler?

      19                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry.  I was just going to

      20       say, I believe that would be Ms. Ousdahl.

      21       BY MR. BECK:

      22            Q    FPL Energy Services and the utility have a

      23       business relationship with respect to billing, do they

      24       not?

      25            A    Yes.  FPL Energy Services provides certain
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       1       products and services which are billed through the

       2       utility bill to our customers, and FPL Energy Services

       3       pays FPL for those services.

       4            Q    At any time while you held positions with both

       5       of those companies, have you ever had an occasion where

       6       the best interests of the utility company were not the

       7       same as the FPL Energy Services?

       8            A    I don't believe so.

       9            Q    Okay.  You were present at the service hearing

      10       in Plantation, were you not?

      11            A    Yes, I was.

      12            Q    And do you recall a flyer that Representative

      13       Sands brought regarding the services -- a service

      14       provided by FPL Energy Services called ApplianceGuard?

      15            A    Yes, definitely.

      16            Q    And that's been entered into evidence as

      17       Exhibit 26.  Do you have a copy of that?

      18            A    I do not.

      19            Q    I have.

      20                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Beck, do we need

      21       to mark --

      22                 MR. BECK:  It's already been entered into

      23       evidence.  This is just a hard copy.

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  All right, thank you.

      25
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       1                 MR. BUTLER:  I would just note for the record,

       2       as it's being passed out, it's been identified.  I don't

       3       think it has been entered into the record yet as

       4       evidence.

       5                 MR. BECK:  I believe it has.

       6                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Beck, I couldn't

       7       hear you.

       8                 MR. BECK:  I'm sorry.  I believe it has.  I

       9       couldn't swear to it.  I thought all the exhibits --

      10                 MS. HELTON:  I'm showing that it has been.

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And just, again, for

      12       my clarity, this was an exhibit that was given to the

      13       Commission at one of the customer service hearings?

      14                 MR. BECK:  Yes, it was brought by

      15       Representative Sands at the Plantation service hearing

      16       and I believe that earlier the staff moved in all of the

      17       exhibits from the service hearings.

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  That's fine.

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  As a preliminary

      20       matter, at the beginning of the hearing.

      21                 MR. BUTLER:  My apologies.

      22                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  That's fine.

      23                 Go ahead, Mr. Beck.

      24       BY MR. BECK:

      25            Q    Ms. Santos, do you recognize this flyer that
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       1       Representative Sands brought with him?

       2            A    Yes.

       3            Q    Does FPL Utility provide mailing lists to FPL

       4       Energy Services?

       5            A    No, we do not.  Our customer data is kept

       6       totally separate.

       7            Q    Could you turn to the second page of the

       8       flyer?

       9            A    Yes.

      10            Q    And on the left side where it says, "A great

      11       new way to cut household expenses," there's a number of

      12       bullet points.

      13            A    Yes.

      14            Q    Okay.  And the last bullet point there states,

      15       "Conveniently applies the monthly ApplianceGuard fee to

      16       your monthly FPL bill."  Do you see that?

      17            A    Yes.

      18            Q    FPL has a charge for -- that's sent to FPL

      19       Energy Services for that service, does it not?

      20            A    Yes, we charge FPL Energy Services for

      21       providing that service, billing these customers on a

      22       monthly basis on our billing.

      23            Q    And the way that it's done is through a cost-

      24       sharing basis, is it not?

      25            A    Witness Ousdahl is the one to talk about that,
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       1       the details of that calculation.

       2            Q    Well, let me ask you this:  Is it your

       3       understanding that the cost for the bill is allocated

       4       between the two companies based on the number of lines

       5       each uses?

       6            A    Yes, it is based on the number of lines.

       7            Q    So, for example, if two lines on the bill were

       8       for FPL Energy Services out of 25 lines, then

       9       eight percent of the cost of the bill would be charged

      10       to FPL Energy Services and the balance would go to

      11       utility customers?

      12            A    Subject to her checking that -- that is my

      13       understanding, but she is the one that does that

      14       calculation, so I would rather that she be the one to

      15       speak to that.

      16            Q    Would you agree there's a market value for

      17       being able to charge for a service in the utility's

      18       bill?

      19            A    We have not -- we don't provide that service

      20       to anyone.  There's no market that has been established.

      21       I think it would be something that operationally would

      22       be difficult for us to do, to coordinate those types of

      23       services with others, and it's really not something that

      24       we're interested in doing.

      25            Q    Would you agree that it would be in the
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       1       interest of the utility's customers if the utility

       2       charged for that service at a market value rather than

       3       simply allocating a portion of the cost to FPL Energy

       4       Services?

       5            A    I would defer that to Witness Ousdahl.  That's

       6       really not my area as to how much, you know, of this

       7       would be allocated.  Maybe I don't understand your

       8       question.

       9            Q    Well, Witness Ousdahl talks about cost

      10       allocation procedures.

      11            A    Maybe I don't understand your question.

      12            Q    Well, that's not my question.

      13            A    Okay.  Tell me the question again, please.

      14            Q    My question is, instead of cost allocation

      15       procedures that gives the benefit of the efficiencies of

      16       FPL's billing system to the affiliate, wouldn't it be in

      17       the utility's interest to charge a higher price, more

      18       akin to market value, for the value of the service it's

      19       providing to the affiliate?

      20            A    From a mathematic -- the answer would be yes,

      21       from a mathematical perspective.  Any time that we -- if

      22       the utility were to have a higher price, yes, it would

      23       be more beneficial.

      24            Q    Why does the utility not charge a market price

      25       for this service to its affiliate instead of a
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       1       cost-sharing basis?

       2            A    Because there is no market price.  There is no

       3       market for this service.  It doesn't exist.  It's not

       4       something that we do.  There's no market price.

       5            Q    You don't think that a surrogate for that

       6       could be developed by the company to determine the value

       7       of that service to the affiliate?

       8            A    I really don't know how that would be.  I

       9       mean, I can tell you that, as somebody who runs a

      10       billing operation, it would take a lot of coordination.

      11       It would be a whole other business.  So I really

      12       couldn't develop that market price.

      13            Q    Could you tell me --

      14            A    I have no experience in that.  I couldn't

      15       develop a market price.

      16            Q    Could you tell me the number of bills where

      17       -- in a current period where the services for FPL Energy

      18       Services were billed through the utility's bill?

      19            A    I don't have that information with me.

      20            Q    Do you have Late-Filed Exhibit 7 to your

      21       deposition with you?

      22            A    Yes, I do.  There I have the number of

      23       customers that were billed.  This is the number of

      24       customers billed.

      25            Q    And could you give me the total number?
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       1            A    I couldn't tell you the number of bills.

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, Mr. Beck.  You're

       3       asking for the total number of bills for what, for a

       4       particular time period or --

       5                 MR. BECK:  Sure, let's take July 2009.

       6       BY MR. BECK:

       7            Q    That's listed on your late-filed exhibit, is

       8       it not?

       9            A    This is the number of customers that we

      10       billed.

      11            Q    Okay.  And you billed 201,479 customers in

      12       July of 2009 for FPL's services, is that right?

      13            A    Yes, that is correct.

      14            Q    And how does the number of customers differ

      15       from the number of bills?

      16            A    Well, I was -- things can happen.  I mean, you

      17       can have bills, you can final notice.  There's not --

      18       I'm thinking transactionally, so I'm not sure that

      19       transactionally the number of pieces of paper that go

      20       out are necessarily the number of customers.

      21            Q    Which would be the lower number?

      22            A    That's what I need to clarify, the number of

      23       customers.

      24            Q    I'm sorry.  What would be the lower or higher

      25       number, customers or bills?
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       1            A    Customers should be the lower number.

       2            Q    So where it states that 201,479 customers were

       3       billed in July of 2009, that might actually reflect more

       4       bills than that, is that right?

       5            A    Possibly.

       6            Q    Does Florida Power & Light provide this

       7       service to anyone other than FPL Energy Services?

       8            A    No, we do not.

       9            Q    So if you were, say, Joe the Plumber and you

      10       had -- you were installing solar water heaters and you

      11       wanted your bill to be applied over a time period where

      12       people could see the offset for his bill against the

      13       electric bill, you wouldn't offer that service to a

      14       third party?

      15            A    No, we would not.  This is a service that we

      16       feel very comfortable offering to our affiliate because

      17       we have, you know, good relationships with the

      18       affiliate.  Our billing timing is the same.  I mean,

      19       there's a lot of things operationally and procedurally

      20       that we feel very comfortable offering service to an

      21       affiliate for that to offer it another third party would

      22       be have different and very difficult, so we're really

      23       not interested in doing that.

      24            Q    FPL Energy Services has used this in the past

      25       to bill customers of Miami Herald through the utilities
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       1       bill, has it not?

       2            A    That is correct.  For a time period FPL Energy

       3       Services offered billing to the Miami Herald.  There was

       4       a project that did not work.  There were a lot of

       5       operational issues with it, and it was terminated in

       6       2008.

       7            Q    So while that was in effect, FPL Energy

       8       Services would compensate Florida Power & Light, the

       9       utility company, based on a cost-sharing basis based on

      10       relative lines, is that right, for that service?

      11            A    Could you repeat that, please?

      12            Q    With respect to the billing of Miami Herald,

      13       Florida Power & Light Energy Services would be charged

      14       by the utility company for that service based on the

      15       relative number of lines on the bill, is that right?

      16            A    Yes.

      17            Q    But they could charge the Miami Herald

      18       whatever price they were willing to pay, is that right?

      19            A    Yeah, I'm not sure -- I believe that the

      20       service with the Miami Herald was not -- it wasn't just

      21       a billing.  There were other things also, because FPL

      22       Energy Services also, at the time the customers connect

      23       service, provides services like newspaper subscriptions,

      24       so it's sort of part of that whole package.  There was

      25       more to it than just simply the billing part.
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       1                 So there was more to it, it wasn't just purely

       2       billing, and, as I said earlier, it was something that

       3       was done for -- I really don't remember how long, but it

       4       wasn't a very long time.  There were issues with it and

       5       we quickly realized that it was not a sustainable

       6       business.

       7            Q    But nonetheless, FPL Energy Services could

       8       charge the Miami Herald a market price, could it not?

       9            A    Yes, they charged the Miami Herald a price,

      10       but, as I said earlier, you know, it's not a sustainable

      11       business.  It's an operation that we realized doesn't

      12       work.  So there really isn't a market because there

      13       isn't a sustainable business model that works.

      14            Q    Okay.  Ms. Santos, let me change topics a bit

      15       and ask you about the prepayment plan.

      16                 You were at the service hearing in Fort Myers,

      17       were you not?

      18            A    Yes, I was.

      19            Q    And did you hear the presentation by Frank

      20       Baylog and Don Morgan concerning the prepayment plan?

      21            A    Yes, I did.

      22            Q    And do you recall he mentioned an interest in

      23       such a plan by entities such as the Bank of America,

      24       Collier County and Lee County?

      25            A    There were several customers, yes, that were
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       1       interested in that.

       2            Q    And you heard the testimony of Jim Deloney of

       3       the Collier County Public Utilities express their

       4       interest in it, is that right?

       5            A    Yes, I did.

       6            Q    Prior to that meeting, had customers expressed

       7       an interest in that directly to Florida Power & Light

       8       Company?

       9            A    My understanding is that prior to that I

      10       believe Mr. Baylog himself may have contacted us, and I

      11       know that we had had some communications with him, and

      12       my understanding was that we told them that we were

      13       interested in evaluating the plan and we were actually

      14       waiting for him to get back to us and never heard back

      15       from him until the service hearings.

      16            Q    Okay.  The service hearings were held over two

      17       months ago, on June 19th, is that right?

      18            A    Yes, that's correct.

      19            Q    Could you tell me what actions Florida Power &

      20       Light has taken since the service hearing to offer such

      21       a billing plan to customers?

      22            A    Sure.  We have formed a team to evaluate the

      23       proposal, and it's a cross-functional team comprised of

      24       multiple departments, including Finance, Regulatory,

      25       Legal, Customer Service, Customer Billing, Revenue
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       1       Recovery and I think Corporate Communications, et

       2       cetera, and -- let's see.  We have a copy of the

       3       spreadsheet that Mr. Baylog presented at the Ft. Myers

       4       quality-of-service hearing, has been requested from

       5       Mr. Baylog, and later we e-mailed him for that, and we

       6       have not received that yet.  We then received a copy of

       7       that from our representative here in Tallahassee, and so

       8       we have been reviewing that spreadsheet and evaluating

       9       it.

      10            Q    Has Florida Power & Light looked at other

      11       utilities offering such a plan?

      12            A    The team may have.  They haven't yet come back

      13       to me with their findings.

      14            Q    The customers who have expressed an interest

      15       in this are some of your larger customers, are they not?

      16            A    They are some of our large customers.

      17            Q    Okay.  How long --

      18            A    I wouldn't say the largest, but some of our

      19       large customers.

      20            Q    How long do you expect it's going to take for

      21       the company to respond to this request from its

      22       customers?

      23            A    Well, I think we have to wait to see when we

      24       can get back some information from Mr. Baylog and be

      25       able to get that communication started.  That's my
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       1       understanding.

       2            Q    Okay, so nothing else is going on until that

       3       happens?

       4            A    Well, we have been reviewing the spreadsheet

       5       and trying to understand the concepts and getting the

       6       teams together.

       7                 I know that the position of this company in

       8       this case is that we are, you know, very willing to

       9       evaluate the proposal and come back to this Commission

      10       if the Commission wishes to understand the merits of it

      11       sometime early next year.  There's a lot of things that

      12       need to be addressed here, so just that the

      13       Commissioners understand, what these customers are

      14       wanting to do is to pay an estimated yearly amount of

      15       their electric bills a year before, early, and have FPL

      16       give them a discount based on FPL's cost of capital.

      17       Those customers would then in turn, I guess, borrow

      18       money, issue some kind of bonds, a lower cost of capital

      19       to them, and so they would be saving that money.

      20                 And what we have to determine and make sure is

      21       that none of our customers are jeopardized in any way by

      22       this type of proposal, and, you know we need to

      23       establish what the appropriate discount rate is.  We

      24       need to understand the billing process, how we may have

      25       to change our billing systems in order to get that to
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       1       happen.

       2                 So there's a lot of steps and things that have

       3       to be looked at, so we -- I know that our position in

       4       this case is that we definitely are willing to look at

       5       it.

       6            Q    Okay.  And you said it would be early next

       7       year when you get back?

       8            A    Yes.

       9            Q    Okay, thank you.

      10            A    I think it was either -- I don't remember the

      11       position -- I don't know -- early, I think we may have

      12       said by the second quarter, either the first or second

      13       quarter.  I don't remember what's on the position.  Hold

      14       on.

      15                 Second quarter.

      16            Q    Thank you, Ms. Santos.  That's all I have.

      17            A    You're welcome.

      18                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you, and that

      19       brings us to FIPUG.  Ms. Kaufman?

      20                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      21                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      22       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      23            Q    Good afternoon, Ms. Santos.  How are you?

      24            A    Good, thank you.

      25            Q    I want to take a look at your direct testimony
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       1       and ask you a few questions about that.  If you'd take a

       2       look at page 3, line 7, actually your sentence begins on

       3       line 6, and I think you mentioned this in your summary.

       4       You said, I believe, to paraphrase, that what you want

       5       to do is provide good service to your customers at a low

       6       cost, correct?  Page 3, line 6 to 7.

       7                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, did you say good

       8       service?

       9       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      10            Q    I'm sorry, superior service at a low cost.

      11            A    Superior service, yes, and at the same time

      12       low cost.

      13            Q    So that's your goal --

      14            A    Yes, it is.

      15            Q    -- as VP of Customer Service?

      16                 I want to talk to you a little bit about the

      17       advanced metering project that the South Florida

      18       Hospital representative talked to you about, and I think

      19       she said that, and you agreed, that the cost of that

      20       project is, in capital, 645 million and then 34 million

      21       operating, correct?

      22            A    That is right.

      23            Q    And you're implementing that over a three- or

      24       four-year period, is that correct?

      25            A    Through 2013.
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       1            Q    Okay.  And is the cost of that project one of

       2       the things for which FPL is seeking recovery in this

       3       case?

       4            A    Yes, it is.  I would like to clarify for you

       5       that those meters are for residential and small/medium

       6       business customers.  It's only for -- as far as for

       7       business customers, it's for the GS rate customers.

       8       They're not demand meters.

       9            Q    I understand.  So it's for the residential and

      10       the, I guess could we say, small business?

      11            A    Small business, uh-huh.

      12            Q    And it's your intent at the end, by the time

      13       this project is done, to have replaced about 4.3 million

      14       meters?

      15            A    Yes.

      16            Q    You have meters in place now for all your

      17       customers, I'm assuming, correct?

      18            A    Yes.

      19            Q    Because --

      20            A    Hopefully.

      21            Q    Because you send someone to read them, right,

      22       every month or whatever the appropriate billing period

      23       is?

      24            A    Uh-huh.

      25            Q    And I assume that the majority of these meters
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       1       are still functioning appropriately and you're able to

       2       meter and bill your customers?

       3            A    Sure.

       4            Q    And as I understand this project, for the

       5       residential and small business folks, for most of them

       6       you actually have to remove the meters that are there

       7       and install these, what you've called Smart Meters?

       8            A    Yes.  It takes -- there's a lot to it.  I

       9       mean, we have to not only install the meters at the

      10       premises, but we also have to install communications

      11       network throughout.  So it's equipment on poles and then

      12       we need to have back office systems to capture all this

      13       data and put it into our legacy billing systems.

      14            Q    So it's quite a complicated process, would you

      15       agree?

      16            A    It's a big project for sure.

      17            Q    A big project?

      18            A    A big project.

      19            Q    And the meters that are already in the field

      20       can't be used to accomplish this project, correct?

      21            A    That is correct.

      22            Q    This is -- would you agree that this is a

      23       pretty big capital project?

      24            A    Sure.  $645 million is a lot of money.

      25            Q    And I know we've heard a lot of testimony, and
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       1       I think you mentioned it as well, that certainly we're

       2       in some at least uncertain economic times.  Would you

       3       agree with that?

       4            A    It's a tough economic time, yes, definitely.

       5            Q    Isn't this the sort of project that might be

       6       put off or postponed in order to attempt to reduce some

       7       costs for the ratepayers, especially since I understand

       8       the company to be seeking over a billion dollars in a

       9       rate increase?  Is this something that could be

      10       postponed?

      11            A    It's something that could be postponed, but

      12       let me tell you why we think we shouldn't postpone it.

      13       We truly believe that this is the time to invest in AMI.

      14       There's a lot of good reasons.

      15                 First of all, the technology is ready.  We

      16       have looked at various technologies throughout many

      17       years, and the technology that we have chosen of RF mesh

      18       works.  We have had meters in place since 2007, 100,000

      19       of them, that have been reading at a 99.9 percent rate.

      20       We truly believe that our customers are going to get a

      21       whole lot of benefits from this.

      22                 And it's something that customers want.  I've

      23       got data from a market research study that was just

      24       recently published that says that nationally over

      25       75 percent of customers want their utilities to invest
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       1       in smart grid, want these types of AMI, Smart Meters,

       2       and not only do they want them, but they're willing to

       3       pay for them, and it's astronomical what customers are

       4       actually willing to pay.  These 75 percent of the

       5       customers are willing to pay between $16 to $20 per

       6       month.  So just to let you know what we have included in

       7       our test year is about 60 cents per month for customers

       8       to pay.

       9            Q    Thank you, Ms. Santos.

      10                 You mentioned a national survey.  Have you

      11       surveyed Florida Power & Light's customers?

      12            A    No, we have not.

      13            Q    And so you don't know how they'd feel about

      14       that in terms of how that's going to impact the

      15       requested rate increase?

      16            A    No, we have not done that study.

      17            Q    If you'd take a look at page 42 of your

      18       testimony, lines 8 to 9, and on the prior page you were

      19       still talking about the AMI project, correct, just to

      20       get some context?

      21            A    Yes.  Go ahead.

      22            Q    And one of the reasons that you cite for this

      23       project on page 8 and 9 there is that it's important for

      24       FPL to be a leader in the movement, is that correct?

      25       FPL wants to be out in front on these kind of projects?
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       1            A    Yes, that's one of several things that I

       2       mentioned, and the reason why it's important to be a

       3       leader is because, as do you that, you're really --

       4       you're shaping, you're shaping the market, you're

       5       shaping what the vendors are providing, you're the one

       6       right up front telling vendors how you want the

       7       technology to work.  And we've done that and it's very,

       8       very advantageous for us to do that.

       9            Q    And on page 41, line 21 -- actually your

      10       answer starts at line 20 and relates to some of the

      11       comments that you made about the importance of going

      12       forward with this project at the time, and one thing you

      13       say is that you wanted to ensure that customers'

      14       expectations are met, is that correct?

      15            A    Yes.  I say that they are met now and in the

      16       future.

      17            Q    But you haven't determined whether your

      18       customers are -- whether that's included in their

      19       expectations as it pertains to the rate increase you're

      20       seeking, correct?

      21            A    Well, we haven't asked our customers in

      22       particular about that, but it's something that -- we

      23       know the customers want options, so there's a lot of

      24       things that we know from our market research that, you

      25       know, it's not specific to the Smart Meters, but we know
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       1       our customers want options.  We know that our customers

       2       want to understand how to use energy better.  So

       3       there's -- you know, we know that our customers want us

       4       to be to able to restore power quicker.  We know our

       5       customers want us to connect and disconnect their

       6       service quicker.  So all the things that AMI will

       7       provide, we know that they're things that our customers

       8       want, so we never really felt the need to go out and

       9       have to specifically ask our customers if they wanted us

      10       to install Smart Meters, because we knew that the things

      11       that the Smart Meters were going to provide them are

      12       things that they want.

      13            Q    And I guess my point is you didn't -- you're

      14       assuming that your customers want it and I guess you're

      15       assuming that they're willing to absorb that through

      16       this rate increase, correct?

      17                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm going to object to the

      18       question.  That doesn't characterize Ms. Santos's prior

      19       testimony at all accurately.

      20                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I can rephrase it, Madam

      21       Chairman, if that would be all right.

      22                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Please.

      23       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      24            Q    I think you told us, Ms. Santos, that you

      25       haven't done a survey of Florida Power & Light customers
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       1       in regard to their views on investing in Smart Meters,

       2       correct?

       3            A    That is correct.

       4            Q    And from your prior answer where you described

       5       to us all the things that customers want, I have assumed

       6       that in that calculation you have assumed that customers

       7       are willing to pay for all these things in the context

       8       of this rate increase.  Is that right?

       9            A    Well, I can tell you that it's something that

      10       customers definitely want, and in -- customers will

      11       receive the quantitative benefits, the savings of the

      12       Smart Meters throughout the life of the project, there

      13       is no doubt, because, as I mentioned earlier, there are

      14       savings to this project.  There are savings that come

      15       from automation and from efficiencies and all, and

      16       throughout the life the customers will receive benefits

      17       and savings from it.

      18                 So I'm really not concerned, you know, about

      19       that, and know that I think it's very little amount that

      20       is in this rate increase.  It's, you know, in 2010, 60

      21       cents per month for customers to get Smart Meters.  I

      22       think it's a great value.

      23            Q    But just to be clear, you haven't asked your

      24       customers about that?

      25            A    I think I answered that question already, yes.
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       1            Q    I mean, the answer is no, you have not,

       2       correct?

       3            A    I answered that question already, which was

       4       that we have not asked our customers in particular.

       5            Q    Still on this same line here, page 41, line

       6       21, you're talking about meeting customers'

       7       expectations.  Do you think that the magnitude of this

       8       increase meets the -- the requested increase meets your

       9       customers' expectations?

      10            A    Can you -- what increase are you talking

      11       about, the AMI-related rate increase?  Because that's

      12       what I was talking about here in my testimony.  I mean,

      13       I'm talking about AMI.

      14            Q    Well, as -- I'm assuming that, as the vice-

      15       president of Customer Service, you probably talk to a

      16       lot of customers during the course of your day?

      17            A    Uh-huh.

      18            Q    Do you think that the company's request for

      19       over a billion-dollar increase is meeting the

      20       expectation of those customers?

      21            A    Well, first of all, the request that the

      22       company is making is actually a request that will lower

      23       rates.

      24                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Madam Chair, I'm sorry to

      25       interrupt, but do you think --
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Ms. Kaufman.

       2                 MS. KAUFMAN:  -- if I could just get the

       3       witness to answer yes or no and give an explanation, as

       4       is the tradition here, hopefully?

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  I think it's more than

       6       tradition, it's generally a goal, but, Ms Santos, if you

       7       can answer a question with a yes or no --

       8                 THE WITNESS:  I apologize.

       9                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  -- please do so, and

      10       then you have, of course, the opportunity to expand or

      11       quantify or however you choose to proceed, within

      12       reason.

      13       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      14            Q    Do you need me to repeat it if I can, the

      15       question?

      16            A    Sure, go ahead.

      17            Q    My question was, in terms of the over

      18       billion-dollar base rate increase that the company is

      19       seeking here, do you think that that meets your

      20       customers' expectations?

      21            A    Yes, I certainly do, because I think that our

      22       customers expect us to provide them with affordable,

      23       reliable service, and they expect us to invest in the

      24       future, so they're expecting us to do the right things

      25       to made the investments that we have proposed in this
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       1       rate request.

       2            Q    You also talk about -- on page 42 you talk

       3       about bad debt expense.

       4            A    Yes.

       5            Q    Have you seen your bad debt expense increase

       6       over, say, since 2008?

       7            A    Yes, we have.

       8            Q    Is it projected to continue to increase in the

       9       2009 and 2010 and 2011 test year?

      10            A    Hold on a second.  Let me get my numbers.

      11                 We are actually projecting a reduction -- hold

      12       on, let me get the revised numbers.

      13                 We're actually projecting a slight reduction

      14       in bad debt in 2010 from 2009 and also projecting a

      15       reduction in bad debt in 2011.

      16            Q    If you'd turn to page 46, line 16, and

      17       beginning with that question and answer there, you're

      18       talking about the customer service O&M expenses.

      19            A    Yes.

      20            Q    And onto page 47 at the top there, am I

      21       correct that part of the reason for those increases is

      22       increased collection activity related to, I guess I

      23       could say, uncollectible accounts?

      24            A    That is correct.

      25            Q    And on page 48 you talk about the benchmark
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       1       for customer accounts, is that right?

       2            A    That is correct.

       3            Q    And on -- am I right that the company's over

       4       that benchmark by over $27 million?

       5            A    27.2 million.

       6            Q    And that's -- you attribute that to a number

       7       of things, including the deteriorating economic

       8       condition, correct?

       9            A    Yes.

      10            Q    As well as we've discussed, high

      11       uncollectibles?

      12            A    Yes.  There are several things, I mean,

      13       throughout that whole page.

      14            Q    And of course another one is the AMI

      15       investment, correct?

      16            A    Yes.

      17            Q    And then you're also -- when I say "you," I

      18       mean the company -- over the benchmark for customer

      19       accounts in 2011, correct?  I think that's also -- I

      20       think that's on page 50, line 6.  Maybe I'm on the wrong

      21       page.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry.  Where are you

      23       referring to, Ms. Kaufman?

      24       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      25            Q    Well, do you know if you're over the benchmark
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       1       for customer accounts for your projections for 2011?

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry.  When you say, "over

       3       the benchmark for customer accounts," what do you mean?

       4       What benchmark are you referring to that applies to

       5       customer accounts?

       6                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Well, let me look back in this.

       7       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       8            Q    Ms. Santos, you're talking about the

       9       Commission's O&M benchmarks beginning on page 48,

      10       correct?

      11            A    Yes.  For 2011, to answer your question for

      12       customer accounts, we're over the benchmarks by

      13       20.8 million, which is actually lower than the 2010 test

      14       year benchmark variance of 27.2 million.

      15            Q    But nonetheless --

      16            A    So we are over the benchmark, but less than

      17       2010.

      18            Q    And similarly for 2010 and 2011 you're over

      19       the benchmark in your customer service function area as

      20       well, correct?

      21            A    Yes.

      22            Q    Thank you.

      23                 MS. KAUFMAN:  That's all I have.

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, thank you.

      25                 Ms. Bradley?
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       1                 MS. BRADLEY:  Thank you.

       2                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       3       BY MS. BRADLEY:

       4            Q    Ms. Santos, did you attend all the hearings or

       5       just some of them?

       6            A    No -- yes, I attended all the hearings.

       7            Q    Okay.  I thought so.  I just wanted to make

       8       sure.

       9                 Did you oversee that for Florida Power &

      10       Light?  I know you did the presentation and all of that.

      11            A    Yes, I did.

      12            Q    How many staff people did you have helping

      13       with that?

      14            A    I had one person helping me with that that was

      15       in charge of coordinating that for me.

      16            Q    And we heard at least one or two people that

      17       came in and testified and said that Florida Power &

      18       Light had asked them to come and testify for the

      19       company.  Did y'all call people and ask them to testify?

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm going to object to the

      21       question.  I don't think that there's facts and evidence

      22       supporting the statement that customers had called

      23       asking the company to attend on the company's behalf.

      24       It was -- perhaps Ms. Bradley should point to whatever

      25       she's referring to if she believes there is evidence to
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       1       that effect.

       2                 MS. BRADLEY:  Well, I can't point to it.  I

       3       don't have it all here with me, but there was certainly

       4       testimony to that effect, and I believe Senator -- I'm

       5       sorry, I have that messed up -- Commissioner Argenziano

       6       mentioned yesterday having heard that testimony.

       7                 MR. BUTLER:  Well, my objection stands.

       8                 MS. BRADLEY:  And it's in the record already

       9       as part of the service hearings.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  And I'm asking Ms. Bradley to

      11       point Ms. Santos to that evidence, and this is just

      12       routinely done, that if somebody wants a witness to

      13       discuss a particular exhibit or evidence that's in the

      14       record, that you point the person to what it is that

      15       you're referring to.

      16                 MS. BRADLEY:  Actually, no.  You usually ask

      17       them if they remember that testimony, like I'm doing.

      18                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Was that to me, Ms.

      19       Bradley?

      20                 MS. BRADLEY:  Excuse me?

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Was that to me?

      22                 MS. BRADLEY:  That was to everybody.  I'm

      23       sorry.

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Ms. Helton?

      25                 MS. HELTON:  Madam Chairman, I was not at the
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       1       service hearings, but it is my understanding that there

       2       was some testimony by some of the customers at the

       3       service hearings that they had been asked by FPL to

       4       attend, and I think that one the earlier witnesses

       5       discussed that a little bit.  I think it may have even

       6       been the president of the company.  Ms. Bennett just

       7       agreed with me.  So I do believe that there is, you

       8       know, evidence in the record already that that has

       9       happened.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Just to move this along, we'll

      11       withdraw the objection.  I just want be to be clear that

      12       we try to keep to specific references to the record

      13       where possible.

      14                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Ms. Bradley, can

      15       you -- if you choose to rephrase, fine.  If you don't,

      16       fine, but either way, can you restate the question?

      17                 MS. BRADLEY:  I'll try.

      18       BY MS. BRADLEY:

      19            Q    Do you remember the persons that came to the

      20       hearings -- there was at least one or two -- that

      21       specifically stated that they had had calls from Florida

      22       Power & Light asking them to come testify?

      23            A    I do not remember that.  I can tell you what

      24       we did, and what we did --

      25            Q    Okay.  Then we're trying to get there.
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       1            A    Sure.  Well, what we did was we invited --

       2       first of all, we invited all of our customers through

       3       lots of different mediums, through advertisements,

       4       through bill inserts, through bill messages, and the

       5       employees that have contact with our customers

       6       throughout the communities that we serve told their

       7       customers about the service hearings, and if customers

       8       were interested in attending, you know, they attended,

       9       but -- I mean, we definitely told our customers about

      10       the service hearings, so if that's what you meant by

      11       your question, you know, definitely we did.

      12                 And I know for a fact that several of the

      13       other parties in this case did the same thing.  AARP had

      14       e-mails recruiting customers to attend the hearings, the

      15       Florida Retail Federation had e-mails recruiting

      16       customers to attend the hearings, and so, you know, we

      17       just told our customers about the hearings.

      18            Q    For the record, I don't believe AARP is a

      19       party to this proceeding.

      20                 But did you or your assistant call any

      21       companies or individuals and ask them to testify?

      22            A    Definitely not.

      23            Q    I guess I shouldn't ask how much you spent on

      24       that, then.

      25            A    I don't know what you're talking about
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       1       spending on.  We didn't spend anything.

       2            Q    At the hearings -- you oversee Customer

       3       Service, correct?

       4            A    Yes.

       5            Q    At the hearings, do you remember people coming

       6       in and testifying that the -- I think it was somewhere

       7       around the third hearing -- they were having problems

       8       with power outages and power surges and that type of

       9       thing?

      10            A    I know we had several customers that talked

      11       about reliability concerns.  I believe it was in total

      12       about 20-some customers that had reliability concerns.

      13            Q    And they were complaining about, as I said,

      14       the power surges, the power going out and -- for periods

      15       of time and causing -- they had lost appliances and that

      16       type thing, correct?

      17            A    Yes.

      18            Q    And then there were some complaints about

      19       tree-trimming that had caused outages and fires,

      20       correct?

      21            A    The outages and fires, I'm not sure I remember

      22       those, but maybe I can tell you by letting you know

      23       that -- so I oversee Customer Service.  Anything having

      24       to do with reliability, Mike Spoor is the person that

      25       will be testifying on those.  So if I have any specific
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       1       questions on any of those, he can handle them, because

       2       what we did was we had, out of the 418 customers that

       3       testified at the hearings, we had 55 that had concerns.

       4       So some of those concerns were reliability concerns and

       5       some were other billing-related matters and those types

       6       of things.  And so what we did is, between Mr. Spoor and

       7       myself, we divided those up, and Mr. Spoor handled and

       8       resolved all of the issues related to reliability and I

       9       handled and resolved all of the other issues.

      10            Q    Which one of you handled the calls that were

      11       coming in about the Poinsettia Heights neighborhood down

      12       in Ft. Lauderdale?

      13            A    Can you give me a little bit more information

      14       and tell me which specific customer that was so that I

      15       can look it up?

      16            Q    No.  That was apparently something that's

      17       being going on -- did you see the article that was in

      18       the Ft. Lauderdale paper?

      19            A    I'm not familiar with it.

      20            Q    Are you aware of any problems down in

      21       Poinsettia Heights?

      22            A    Poinsettia Heights, I am not.  I don't recall.

      23       Is it a reliability issue, or --

      24            Q    Apparently there were problems with outages.

      25            A    Then that would be Mr. Spoor.
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       1            Q    Okay.  That doesn't come through your offices

       2       or the people you supervise --

       3            A    No, it does not.

       4            Q    -- that kind of thing?

       5            A    No, it goes to Mr. Spoor's.

       6                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Ms. Bradley, I'm

       7       having a little hard time hearing.

       8                 MS. BRADLEY:  I'm sorry.  I may have backed

       9       away --

      10                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Maybe you're not, but

      11       I'm tired, but, if you could, into the mike a little bit

      12       more.

      13                 MS. BRADLEY:  All right.  I'll try.

      14                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Commission Skop

      15       suggests a five-minute break, and let's call it seven.

      16       So don't go far and then we will come back.  We are on

      17       recess.

      18                 (Brief recess.)

      19                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Thank you all.

      20       Let's see if we can move through the next stage, and,

      21       Mr. Bradley, we are still with you.  Please go ahead.

      22                 MS. BRADLEY:  Thank you.

      23       BY MS. BRADLEY:

      24            Q    Ms. Santos, maybe it would help me if you

      25       explained a little bit more about what, in your company,
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       1       Customer Service does, because in other companies a lot

       2       of times they handle complaints about a variety of

       3       subjects, and how is it different in your company?  You

       4       said you didn't handle the complaints about outages and

       5       that type stuff.

       6            A    Correct, the complaints that related to

       7       service reliability are handled in the distribution

       8       business unit, which is where Mr. Spoor works on and

       9       will be testifying on.  So my business unit handles

      10       complaints related -- everything else, so anything

      11       related to billing, payments, those types of things.

      12            Q    There were a number of people at the hearings

      13       that testified about having trouble paying their bills,

      14       correct?

      15            A    A couple of people.  It wasn't a big number

      16       that I recall, but yes.

      17            Q    Do you remember a number of seniors saying

      18       that they were on limited income and their Social

      19       Security had been frozen for the next couple of years

      20       and they just didn't know how they would be able to pay

      21       if there was an increase?

      22            A    Yes, there were several seniors, especially

      23       those with big representation, as you recall, from AARP,

      24       and they all had that type of similar testimony.

      25            Q    Have you made any plans to either lower their
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       1       bills or do anything specifically to address the fact

       2       that they may not be able to pay this if you increased

       3       their bills?

       4            A    Well, I'll say first of all the answer is yes,

       5       we do have a lot of things that we do for our seniors

       6       and our low income customers, but I first want to

       7       clarify that what we're looking at for January 2010 is a

       8       reduction in bills.  So it's hard for me to imagine that

       9       these customers will have more trouble paying their

      10       bills when the bills are expected to go down in 2010.

      11                 I think a lot of people there were possibly

      12       thinking that the 30 percent increase that was being

      13       talked about was an increase to their total bill and

      14       didn't understand the differences between base and fuel

      15       and all of that, but I will definitely tell you all of

      16       the things that we're doing to help our low income and

      17       senior customers if you'd like.

      18            Q    Are these new things?

      19            A    There are things that -- some of them are,

      20       yes, things that we have implemented this year.

      21            Q    Have you implemented them since the public

      22       hearings?

      23            A    No, not since the public hearings.

      24            Q    Okay.  So the people that were testifying that

      25       they were having trouble paying their bills would
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       1       already be eligible for whatever problems you already

       2       have in place, correct?

       3            A    Yes, you could possibly say that.

       4            Q    All right.  Now, you're talking about

       5       increasing late payment charges, I think it's -- it says

       6       a minimum of $10.  What is the -- how fast does it go up

       7       after that and what causes it to go up?  When I see

       8       "minimum," I get concerned.

       9            A    Sure.  Do you want me to explain to you our

      10       proposal?

      11            Q    Yes.

      12            A    Okay, sure.  Right now what we have for late

      13       payment charges is that customers pay one and a half

      14       percent of the amount that they are past due, and the

      15       proposal that we have in this case is to have a minimum

      16       of $10 or one and a half percent, whichever is greater.

      17       So if a customer, you know, has a $200 bill, for

      18       example, they would pay $10.

      19            Q    How much time -- how late do they have to be

      20       -- let me try this one more time.  How late do they have

      21       to be on their payment before they're charged a late

      22       fee?

      23            A    We provide our customers with a one-day grace

      24       period.

      25            Q    So if they're two days late, they get hit with
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       1       a late fee?

       2            A    That is correct.

       3            Q    Is there any option for the customer --

       4       because I think there were a few people that talked

       5       about that they -- their bill was due, you know, a few

       6       days before they get their check and anything.  Is there

       7       any option to the customer about changing a billing

       8       date?

       9            A    Yes.  We actually offer a program called

      10       62-Plus that allows customers to tell us when it is that

      11       they want to be billed, essentially.  So we will move

      12       their billing due date to coincide with things like

      13       Social Security payments and that type of thing.

      14            Q    And I think your records show that y'all made

      15       about or projected to make about 44 million off of late

      16       payment charges in 2010?

      17            A    Under current rates, under the proposal that I

      18       mentioned of the one and a half percent.

      19            Q    And that's under the current rate, not the

      20       projected rate?

      21            A    That's correct.  The 44 million was under the

      22       current one and a half percent charge.

      23            Q    So it could be a lot more than that if you're

      24       granted the request to increase it?

      25            A    Yes, and that is included in the filing, and
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       1       actually, I mean, it's probably very important for

       2       everyone to note that the fact that we have included

       3       this increased late payment charge is decreasing base

       4       rates, so the higher late-payment charge actually is

       5       decreasing base rates by $1.70 per month for all

       6       customers.  So our proposal is that all customers get a

       7       reduction of $1.70 per month, which turns out to be

       8       about $20 per year, and then customers that pay late pay

       9       this minimum of $10.

      10                 So essentially what happens is that our

      11       customers end up saving money.  The ones that pay on

      12       time, they get a $20 a year savings.  If they pay late

      13       one time, they eat up $10 of that $20, and they sort of

      14       break even if they pay late twice.

      15            Q    Would it be fair to say that people that are

      16       already struggling to pay bills are going to have a

      17       harder time when you add on a late payment?

      18            A    Definitely the late payment charge will be

      19       something that they will have to pay, I mean, and

      20       hopefully -- you know, the whole intent of a late

      21       payment charge is to incent good payment behavior and to

      22       get customers to pay on time and to help them budget and

      23       incent that good payment behavior.

      24            Q    So you see it as the customer's fault if

      25       they're not paying on time, not circumstances beyond
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       1       their control?

       2            A    No, I did not say that at all.  I wasn't

       3       talking about anyone's fault.  All I was talking about

       4       was the purpose of the charge.

       5            Q    Well, you talk about "deterrent" in your

       6       testimony, do you not?

       7            A    About what?

       8            Q    Deterrent, the late payment charge is intended

       9       as a deterrent.

      10            A    It's a deterrent for bad payment behavior,

      11       that is correct.

      12            Q    And the same is true of the connect-disconnect

      13       fee that you're proposing to increase about a hundred

      14       dollars?

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, what is also true?

      16                 MS. BRADLEY:  It was referred as connect-

      17       disconnect.

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  What is also true?  When you

      19       said, "the same is true," what are you referring to?

      20                 MS. BRADLEY:  Oh, I was asking about what she

      21       had just said about the late payment fee.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  That it helps reduce the other

      23       customers' bills?

      24                 MS. BRADLEY:  No.

      25       / / / / /
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       1       BY MS. BRADLEY:

       2            Q    Do you see what I'm talking about?

       3            A    Hold on a second.  You're talking about the

       4       reconnect -- which fee are you talking about, the --

       5            Q    Well, it's referred to it as the connect-

       6       disconnect, but I think it's probably more of a

       7       reconnect fee.

       8            A    Okay.  The reconnect fee that we are proposing

       9       is a $48 charge and it is a purely cost-based charge.

      10       It has no deterrent factor, nothing extra.  It's purely

      11       cost-based.

      12            Q    And that's an increase?

      13            A    Right now the current charge is $17.66, and as

      14       I remind everyone, these charges were established over

      15       20 years ago, and it's also very much in line with other

      16       utilities in the state.

      17            Q    Have you implemented your AMI meters yet in

      18       any place?

      19            A    We have 100,000 meters already installed.

      20            Q    So, excuse me, I believe part of the AMI --

      21       one of the features of that was remote disconnect?

      22            A    Yes, that is correct.

      23            Q    So you're raising the fee for reconnect even

      24       though the AMI meters are supposed to be able to reduce

      25       the cost of disconnects and reconnects?
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       1            A    Yes, that's all correct.  Everything that

       2       you're saying is correct.  What's also correct is that

       3       the feature for being able to immediately connect and

       4       disconnect meters will not be available probably until,

       5       we're expecting January of 2012.  So it's -- you know,

       6       there's -- and that actually has all been included in

       7       our -- in the economic analysis and all the numbers that

       8       we have filed.

       9            Q    Now, turning -- is there a separate fee for an

      10       initial connection?

      11            A    Yes, there is.

      12            Q    And is that what's being increased by $100?

      13            A    Exactly.  Our proposal is to increase the

      14       initial connect fee to $100, and it's currently at

      15       14.88.

      16            Q    Do you remember the testimony about some

      17       people were having a hard time making that large a

      18       payment trying to get services established when they're

      19       young couples and that type of thing?

      20                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, again, can you refer

      21       more specifically to the customer testimony that you are

      22       referencing?

      23                 MS. BRADLEY:  I don't remember which one it

      24       was.  I was just asking her if she remembers it.

      25                 THE WITNESS:  I don't really remember that in
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       1       particular.

       2       BY MS. BRADLEY:

       3            Q    Is it fair to say that increasing the cost of

       4       having to get service installed is obviously going to

       5       make it harder for some people that are on limited

       6       incomes?

       7            A    Increasing any service is going to make it

       8       more difficult for people to pay.

       9                 I need to clarify to you, this initial connect

      10       charge is a charge for brand new service, so it's not

      11       for existing customers that are moving -- or for

      12       customers that are moving into a home or apartment that

      13       already had service.  That is not what it's for.  So

      14       it's a brand new home, that's what it is.

      15            Q    And that's $100 plus -- I mean, that's an

      16       increase of $100, plus it includes -- they have to pay a

      17       deposit, don't they?

      18            A    It's not an increase of $100.  The charge that

      19       we are proposing is $100.

      20            Q    Okay, I'm glad you clarified that, but they

      21       have to pay the hundred plus a deposit?

      22            A    We require certain customers to pay a deposit.

      23       Not all customers pay a deposit.  We use credit scoring

      24       to minimize, you know, the number of customers that we

      25       require deposits for.
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       1            Q    So the lower income the person has, the more

       2       likely they are to have to pay a deposit, correct?

       3            A    Not necessarily.  It's not based on income,

       4       it's based on credit score.

       5            Q    Would it be more likely, though, that the

       6       person at a low income is going to have a lower credit

       7       score and going to be required to pay a deposit?

       8            A    I've never done that type of analysis so I

       9       couldn't tell you that.

      10            Q    There were a couple of people that mentioned

      11       the fact that they were getting billed for different

      12       periods of time, it wasn't the same amount every time,

      13       and how is your billing done as far as, are there times

      14       that people may be billed -- I believe somebody said 28

      15       days and another time it may be 31 days?  Is that

      16       something you've gotten a lot of complaints about?

      17            A    No, that's not something we've gotten a lot of

      18       complaints about.

      19            Q    Do you know what the difference is in the

      20       times that people are billed for?

      21            A    Usually our customers are billed between about

      22       28 to 32 days, so it's just a matter of how the meter

      23       reading routes are set and the number of days in the

      24       month and that type of thing.

      25            Q    Is there not a difference between the billing
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       1       for less than 1,000 kilowatts and more than?

       2            A    You're talking about our rates?

       3            Q    Yes.

       4            A    Yes.

       5            Q    Can you see -- I mean, would it be fair to say

       6       that somebody that's billed possibly for 32 days versus

       7       30 is more -- it may possibly go over the thousand

       8       because it's a longer period of time?

       9            A    That could be a possibility.

      10            Q    Okay.

      11            A    The good news, if I could add just something,

      12       with AMI all of that will go away, so our customers

      13       won't have all those types of things that happen today

      14       because of the fact that we're reading meters manually.

      15            Q    And they will all be billed at a set period of

      16       time?

      17            A    Yes.

      18            Q    Okay.  You mentioned that you had served in

      19       different positions and served over -- oversee Customer

      20       Service.  Are you involved in any of the putting

      21       together of the rate requests and that type thing?

      22            A    Can you be a little bit more specific?  I

      23       mean, I prepared all this testimony.  I did a lot for

      24       this rate request, so I'm not sure what you're talking

      25       about.
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       1            Q    Well, are you involved with the company in

       2       looking at these different issues and planning how much

       3       is going to be requested and what your income level,

       4       your requested return on equity and all of that is going

       5       to be?  Are you involved in those proceedings, those

       6       meetings, that planning?

       7            A    To a limited extent.

       8            Q    Who all did you talk to after the hearings

       9       about what had occurred at the hearings?  Was there

      10       anyone other than Mr. Olivera?

      11            A    I spoke to Mr. Olivera.  Well, there was -- I

      12       mean, everybody that I would have spoken to participated

      13       in the hearings.  I mean, we had regulatory, we had our

      14       corporate communications executives, we had our external

      15       affairs executives.  So we had a lot of people in the

      16       company that went to the service hearings, and we

      17       provided, as Mr. Olivera mentioned, every single day

      18       very detailed summaries of the hearings, and so we felt

      19       very comfortable that our executive team knew what was

      20       going on.

      21            Q    Do you constantly have interface with that

      22       executive team as far as customer complaints, customer

      23       service, what their concerns are?

      24            A    I have monthly meetings with Mr. Olivera and

      25       his management team, if that's what you're referring to.
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       1            Q    After hearing the number of people that came

       2       in and talked about not being able to afford to make

       3       payments and really struggling under this economy, did

       4       you have any discussions with that executive management

       5       team about should we maybe wait another time or cut back

       6       on what we're requesting so that our people will be able

       7       to pay more?

       8            A    No, I did not, because, as I said earlier,

       9       this request is actually a request whereby we're

      10       expecting that customers' bills will be going down, so I

      11       really don't see that as it's going to be a big issue.

      12            Q    Did you have any discussions about -- were

      13       there any concerns voiced about the customer complaints

      14       and their struggling in this economy?

      15            A    I discuss customer complaints with Mr. Olivera

      16       all the time.  It's one of my -- the indicators that I

      17       show him every single month and I talk to him about.

      18                 MS. BRADLEY:  I don't think I have anything

      19       further.  Thank you.

      20                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you,

      21       Ms. Bradley.

      22                 Mr. Wright?

      23                 MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

      24                 Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      25       / / / / /
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       1                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       2       BY MR. WRIGHT:

       3            Q    Good afternoon, Ms. Santos.

       4            A    Good afternoon.

       5            Q    I have what I hope and believe will be a very

       6       few questions for you.

       7                 Are you familiar with the company's customer

       8       satisfaction residential performance target as

       9       referenced in the Company's proxy?

      10            A    I believe so.  Can you show it to me so that I

      11       can be sure?  I want to be sure I tell you the right

      12       thing.

      13                 Is this your only copy?

      14            Q    No, I have a copy, thank you.

      15                 MR. WRIGHT:  Madam Chairman?

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Yes, sir.

      17                 MR. WRIGHT:  I've just handed the witness a

      18       copy of an excerpt of Company's proxy obtained from the

      19       Securities & Exchange Commission website.  I do not

      20       intend to have it marked.  I just want to explore very

      21       briefly what the customer satisfaction indicator is for

      22       operational performance targets as those terms are used

      23       in the Company's proxy.

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Yes, sir.

      25                 MR. BUTLER:  Sheff, do you have another copy
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       1       of it?  If not, I think we have one but it will take me

       2       a moment to get it.

       3                 MR. WRIGHT:  Madam Chair, I do not have

       4       another copy, but --

       5                 MR. BUTLER:  Do you mind if I come down and

       6       look over your shoulder?

       7                 MR. WRIGHT:  Not at all.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And since, Mr. Wright,

       9       you caught me, I'll just go ahead and put it out there.

      10       Commissioner McMurrian is about to pinch-hit for a few

      11       minutes while I make a call to my babysitter.  I will

      12       review the transcript of every single second that I miss

      13       while I step out and make this phone call, but I don't

      14       think that all of you necessarily need to wait while I

      15       do so.  So Commissioner McMurrian will handle things for

      16       the next few moments, and I look forward to reading your

      17       questions.  I'll be right back.

      18                 MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you.

      19       BY MR. WRIGHT:

      20            Q    My question is, what is the actual indicator

      21       for the customer satisfaction residential operational

      22       performance target that's used here or referenced here?

      23            A    It is an indicator that is based on surveying

      24       our customers.  I don't know -- can you explain your

      25       question, please?
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       1            Q    Sure.  I thought you might have the answer off

       2       the top of your head, so I was shooting for that.

       3                 Is this a survey that's conducted by another

       4       entity?

       5            A    Yes, it is.

       6            Q    What entity?

       7            A    It's done in our Market -- Corporate

       8       Communications and Marketing Department.  I do not know

       9       the name of the entity, I'm sorry, but it is another

      10       entity.

      11            Q    I apologize for the ambiguity of my question.

      12                 Is the survey conducted by another group

      13       within FPL Group or is it conducted by an outside

      14       company?

      15            A    An outside company does the survey, and the

      16       department within FPL that contracts that company is in

      17       our Corporate Communications and Marketing Department.

      18       I just don't know the name of the company.

      19            Q    All right, thank you for that.

      20                 The statement is made on the proxy that you've

      21       set a very aggressive target.  Can you tell us what that

      22       target is?

      23            A    I don't have that with me.  I can -- I don't

      24       know -- I mean, I know in general the number, but there

      25       are different numbers for different years, and so it's
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       1       -- I can tell you it's in the mid- to high 80s.

       2            Q    On a scale of 100?

       3            A    Yes.

       4            Q    Thank you.  I don't have any more on that

       5       line.

       6                 MR. WRIGHT:  During the break, Madam Chairman,

       7       I handed the witness a copy of the report that I showed

       8       to Mr. Olivera on Tuesday, I think, and which I had also

       9       previously furnished to FPL, and it simply has to do

      10       with my inquiry of Mr. Olivera of the energy savings,

      11       the GWH or KWH savings achieved by FPL through its DSM

      12       program, and I just have a couple of questions to pose

      13       to the witness on that.

      14       BY MR. WRIGHT:

      15            Q    Ms. Santos, you recognize that as the, what we

      16       call the FEECA report or the report on conservation

      17       activities pursuant to the Florida Energy Efficiency and

      18       Conservation Act compiled by the PSC, right?

      19            A    Yes.

      20            Q    And if you'll look on page 14 in the far

      21       right-hand column, that shows the GWH savings for each

      22       utility for each of the sectors where sectors are

      23       residential as one sector and commercial-industrial

      24       combined, correct?

      25            A    Yes.
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       1            Q    And if I wanted to know what FPL's GWH

       2       savings, as indicated in this report, which was for the

       3       year 2007, I would just look at the two numbers that are

       4       shown there for FPL, correct?

       5            A    Yes.

       6            Q    And together those sum to roughly 594 gigawatt

       7       hours for 2007?

       8            A    Yes.

       9            Q    Thank you.

      10                 MR. WRIGHT:  Madam Chairman, I'm having a

      11       brief exhibit distributed to the witness.

      12                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.  Would you like

      13       it marked?

      14                 MR. WRIGHT:  I would like it marked as Exhibit

      15       420.  At least that's where I am on my list.

      16                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  That's what I have,

      17       too.  Okay, 420.  Okay.  Do you want to give it a

      18       description?

      19                 MR. WRIGHT:  Sure.  FPL Top 20 Purchasers.

      20                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay, FPL Top 20

      21       Purchasers.  Thank you.

      22                 (Exhibit No. 420 marked for identification.)

      23       BY MR. WRIGHT:

      24            Q    Ms. Santos, as vice-president for Customer

      25       Service, are you aware of this report of FPL's largest
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       1       20 purchasers?

       2            A    I honestly have not seen this report before.

       3            Q    You recognize it as a report to the Federal

       4       Energy Regulatory Commission?

       5            A    Yes.

       6            Q    And based on your knowledge of FPL's customer

       7       base, would you agree what this looks like the list of

       8       FPL's top 20 customers?

       9            A    Yes.  We come up with our own list, so yes,

      10       this looks like an accurate list.

      11            Q    Thank you.

      12                 MR. WRIGHT:  And that's all the questions I

      13       have.  Thank you very much.

      14                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Thank you, Mr.

      15       Wright.  I think that's all the Intervenors.  I think

      16       we're going to staff, is that correct?  Okay.

      17                 MS. HARTMAN:  Madam Chair, we have roughly 42

      18       exhibit items that have been stipulated by the parties,

      19       and we'd like to identify those at the end of testimony.

      20       And in addition we have another document, a confidential

      21       document, and that is -- we would like to mark that

      22       later.  That is also identified within staff's

      23       confidential composite exhibit list, 36.

      24       / / / / /

      25       / / / / /

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1635

       1                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       2       BY MS. HARTMAN:

       3            Q    Good evening, Ms. Santos.

       4            A    Good evening.

       5            Q    I'm Jean Hartman and I'm with the Commission

       6       staff.  I wanted to ask you a little bit about FPL's

       7       proposal to increase the minimum late payment charge to

       8       $10.

       9                 Now, in your direct testimony, did you discuss

      10       FPL's proposal to charge the greater of 1.5 percent or

      11       $10 for late payments?

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  Ms. Hartman, do you have a page

      13       reference in mind?

      14                 MS. HARTMAN:  Sure.  I think it was page 55,

      15       lines 22 through 23.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  I just found it.  Yes.

      17       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      18            Q    Do you recall or do you know if staff had

      19       asked FPL to provide the calculations supporting the

      20       change for a minimum late payment charge?

      21            A    I believe there was an interrogatory that

      22       requested that.

      23            Q    Okay.  Would you agree that the interrogatory

      24       response indicated there were no calculations supporting

      25       the charge?
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       1            A    Supporting the $10, that's the, just to

       2       clarify, I mean, we did -- we calculated what the

       3       revenues associated with the charge would be that was

       4       associated with the $10.  There were no calculations

       5       associated with that.

       6            Q    Okay.  I'm going to ask someone to bring you a

       7       copy of a FPL's Response to Interrogatory No. 15.

       8            A    Uh-huh.

       9            Q    Ms. Santos, would you agree with me that the

      10       question asked of FPL by staff in Interrogatory No. 15

      11       asked to provide the calculations supporting the charge

      12       for the minimum late payment charge from 1.5 percent to

      13       the greater of $10 or 1.5 percent?

      14                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm going to object to this

      15       question.  The interrogatory says, "Please provide the

      16       calculations supporting the change for the minimum late

      17       payment charge," as opposed to the calculations for the

      18       charge.

      19       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      20            Q    Okay.  Ms. Santos, would you agree with me

      21       that FPL did not provide calculations supporting the

      22       change in the proposed late payment charge?

      23            A    That is correct, because there really were no

      24       calculations supporting the $10.  So the $10 was an

      25       amount that we felt was sufficient to change customer
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       1       behavior.  Other utilities around the state have a five-

       2       dollar minimum charge, and in looking at it today, our

       3       customers that have late payments have an average of

       4       about a $2.76 late payment charge, and we were thinking

       5       that five dollars would be better than the 2.76 that we

       6       have today, you know, with the one and a half percent,

       7       but didn't think that five dollars was going to be

       8       sufficient to truly incent good payment behavior.  So we

       9       proposed the $10.  We didn't have any calculations to

      10       support that ten-dollar charge.

      11            Q    Are you aware that the Commission in Tampa

      12       Electric Company's most recent rate case approved only a

      13       five-dollar late payment charge?

      14            A    Yes, definitely, that's what I was just

      15       explaining, that the other utilities have a five-dollar

      16       charge, yes.

      17            Q    Okay.  But you're asking for a ten-dollar?

      18            A    That's correct.

      19            Q    Okay.  And so it's your understanding that

      20       Progress Energy Florida only has a minimum five-dollar

      21       late payment charge?

      22            A    Yes, and I believe TECO also.

      23            Q    And do you -- is it your understanding that

      24       Florida Public Utility Company only has a five-dollar

      25       late payment charge?
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       1            A    Yes, I believe so.

       2            Q    Okay.  Can you explain for me, if the three

       3       other Florida investor-owned utilities, TECO, Progress

       4       and FPUC, only have a five-dollar minimum late payment

       5       charge, why is FPL asking for a ten-dollar late payment

       6       charge?

       7            A    When we looked at it, we just felt that five

       8       dollars was not going to be enough to incent good

       9       payment behavior and felt that $10 would be sufficient.

      10            Q    Let me now turn your attention to FPL's

      11       proposed service charges which you start discussing on

      12       page 53 of your direct testimony.

      13                 On the bottom of page 53, line 22, you state

      14       that there is -- I'm sorry, quote, "There is a clear

      15       need to ensure each transaction is fully cost-based and

      16       that customers do not subsidize service charges through

      17       base rates."  That's your testimony, correct?

      18            A    Yes.

      19            Q    Okay.  Would it be correct to say that, if

      20       service charges are set below costs, those unrecovered

      21       costs are then recovered through base rates for all

      22       ratepayers?  Is that correct?

      23            A    Yes, that is correct.

      24            Q    Okay.  If I can also refer you to page 54 of

      25       your direct testimony, starting with lines 22 through
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       1       23, do you discuss that FPL's service charges are based

       2       on projected full costs of providing the service?

       3            A    I list several service charges there that we

       4       are proposing that for.

       5            Q    Okay.

       6            A    And specifically we are proposing for the

       7       connect-disconnect on existing premises, reconnects

       8       after nonpayment, field collections on past due

       9       accounts, and the overhead and underground temporary

      10       service based on the full, updated projected costs.

      11            Q    Okay.  And on page 54, starting with line 23

      12       and continuing over to page 55, do you also state that

      13       FPL is proposing to set the initial connect charge on

      14       new premises at a lower amount of $100 versus the full

      15       cost of $135.95?

      16            A    Yes, that is correct.

      17            Q    Could you please explain why FPL is proposing

      18       to set the initial connect charge on a new premises at

      19       an amount that is below cost?

      20            A    It was just because we felt that that specific

      21       charge was going up very significantly from 14.88 --

      22       $14.88 to, you know, if it was cost-based, $136.  So the

      23       hundred dollars was with, you know, our thoughts of

      24       making it a little bit less of a rate shock for

      25       customers.
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       1            Q    So, just to be clear, the hundred dollars

       2       doesn't cover the full cost?

       3            A    That is correct.

       4            Q    Okay.  Great, thank you.

       5                 Moving forward, I wanted to ask you a little

       6       bit about AMI implementation.  I think you said earlier

       7       that full implementation of AMI -- and by that I mean

       8       when FPL is finished installing all the meters -- is

       9       going to take place in 2013, is that correct?

      10            A    Yes.

      11            Q    Okay.  And can you tell me, what are FPL's

      12       full-time total costs for AMI from 2009 through 2013?

      13            A    Can you repeat?  You said full-time.  I wasn't

      14       sure what you said there.  "Full-time costs," I wasn't

      15       sure what that was.

      16            Q    Could you tell me what are FPL's full-time

      17       total costs for AMI from 2009 through 2013?

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm going to have to ask for

      19       clarification of that.  Is that referring to the capital

      20       investment in the program over that period?

      21                 MS. HARTMAN:  We're asking for the costs of

      22       AMI that are broken down into both capital and O&M.

      23                 MR. BUTLER:  You sort of have a cumulative

      24       total capital investment, and then for the O&M part, are

      25       you asking for the annual O&M or what?
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       1                 MS. HARTMAN:  Yes, total and cumulative.

       2                 MR. BUTLER:  So the total capital investment,

       3       and then the cumulative O&M over that period?

       4                 MS. HARTMAN:  Yes.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Let me tell you what I can

       6       provide you and see if that works.  I can give you the

       7       capital costs each year from 2009 through 2013, and then

       8       I can give you the O&M costs for that period.

       9       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      10            Q    Yes, thank you.

      11            A    And we also have savings for the project.  So

      12       I can give you that also, O&M savings for the project --

      13            Q    Thank you.  I would like to know all of that.

      14            A    -- so you can have the total savings.

      15                 Okay, so I'll start with total capital costs.

      16       For 2009, it's $44 million.  For 2010 it would be

      17       169 million.  2011 is 159 million, 2012 is 152 million

      18       and 2013 is 122 million, for a total over that period of

      19       645 million.

      20                 The O&M cost in 2009 is 2.3 million, 2010 is

      21       6.9 million, 2011 is 8.9 million, 2012 is 11.9 million,

      22       2013 is 10.4 million, for a cumulative of 40.4.

      23                 And the savings, which are O&M also, are

      24       .2 million in 2009, .4 million in 2010, 4.7 million in

      25       2011, 18.2 million in 2012 and 30.4 million in 2013, for
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       1       cumulative savings of 53.9 million.

       2            Q    Ms. Santos, have these numbers changed since I

       3       deposed you on August 20th, 2009?

       4            A    No, they have not.

       5                 Where do you see the discrepancy?

       6            Q    Just reading from the deposition I see that in

       7       2013 you indicated that the savings would be

       8       10.5 million.

       9            A    That's the O&M.

      10                 MR. BUTLER:  Can you refer her, please, to a

      11       specific -- I'm sorry, would you make a reference to a

      12       specific deposition page that you are --

      13                 MS. HARTMAN:  Sure.  This is page 9, line 4.

      14                 Mr. Butler, do you want to share my copy?

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  I have it here.

      16                 MS. HARTMAN:  And again, that's page 9, line

      17       4.

      18                 MR. BUTLER:  Ms. Santos, do you have a copy of

      19       your deposition available to you?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  It says -- it says that the O&M

      21       expense in 2013 is 10.5 million.  I think that's what I

      22       told you just now, is what my sheet shows.

      23       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      24            Q    Okay, and I'm sorry, staff may have misheard

      25       you.
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       1            A    Okay.

       2            Q    Thank you.

       3            A    Sure.

       4            Q    Ms. Santos, once AMI is fully implemented, and

       5       by that I mean once all the AMI meters are installed,

       6       what will FPL's annual savings be?

       7            A    At 2014 the annual savings from AMI will be

       8       approximately $36.9 million.

       9            Q    And are those savings -- do those occur in

      10       year 2014?

      11            A    Yes, they do.

      12            Q    Okay.  And will net savings -- will net

      13       savings begin in 2012?

      14            A    Yes, in -- 2012 is the first year when the O&M

      15       expenses are less than the savings, so there will be net

      16       savings.

      17            Q    Okay.  And could you please explain to me how

      18       the savings are going to be reflected in rates for the

      19       test years?

      20            A    The savings that we will experience in the

      21       test years of 2010 and 2011 are reflected in our

      22       forecast.

      23            Q    Okay.  And will those savings, will they apply

      24       to a customer who has not yet received an AMI meter?

      25                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, Ms. Hartman.  When you
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       1       say they would apply to the customer, can you explain a

       2       little bit further what you mean by the savings applying

       3       to the customers?

       4                 MS. HARTMAN:  We're going to skip that.

       5       BY MS. HARTMAN:

       6            Q    Will AMI lead to more automation and a reduced

       7       number of calls to customer care centers?

       8            A    Yes, AMI will lead to more automation.  Also

       9       we are expecting a few less calls, but the majority of

      10       the savings associated with AMI will be from the

      11       automation that comes from the meter reading itself, not

      12       from the calls.

      13            Q    Can you tell me how many FPL employees -- how

      14       many employees FPL is planning to reduce as the result

      15       of implementation of AMI?

      16            A    Over what time period?

      17            Q    2009 through 2013.

      18            A    Every year, you'd like it for each year?

      19            Q    Yes, by year.

      20            A    Okay.  We will be reducing mostly meter

      21       reading staffing, also some field collection staff, so

      22       the numbers that I'm going to be giving you for

      23       reductions in staff have to do with those types of

      24       functions, but then we will be adding new positions

      25       because, with the new way of doing business, we will be
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       1       adding different types of jobs, so the people that will

       2       be actually looking over the network and the -- all the

       3       systems and everything.  So it's just a different way of

       4       doing business, so just so that you understand what's

       5       happening.  So there's employees that we will be

       6       reducing and then employees that we will be adding.  I

       7       have those two numbers separately, so I can either take

       8       the time and do the math or I can tell you the numbers

       9       separately, whatever you'd like.

      10            Q    Could you please do it separately?

      11            A    Sure.  This is full-time equivalents that we

      12       will be reducing:  In 2009, nine and a half; in 2010,

      13       51.9; 2011, 104.9; 2012, 211.9; 2013, 222.6; in 2014,

      14       53.5.

      15                 Then the positions that we will be adding:  In

      16       2009, 29.5; in 2010, 17.9; in 2011, 26; in 2012, 3.3;

      17       and then in 2013 and 2014, we actually reduce some of

      18       those positions because they're positions that were part

      19       of the deployment, and so since the deployment is coming

      20       down, those positions come down, so then there's a

      21       negative 4.6 in 2013 and a negative 40.8 in 2014.

      22            Q    Ms. Santos, do you have a red folder in front

      23       of you?

      24            A    Yes, I do.

      25            Q    Great.  Ms. Santos, are you familiar with the
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       1       grants available from the Department of Energy for smart

       2       grids?

       3            A    Yes.

       4            Q    Okay.  And has FPL applied for grant money

       5       from the Department of Energy for Smart Meters?

       6            A    We applied for -- to the Department of Energy

       7       for a smart grid project which includes Smart Meters as

       8       part of it.

       9            Q    Okay.  And is the document inside the red

      10       envelope, is that FPL's application for a grant --

      11            A    Yes.

      12            Q    -- for the smart grid investment plan?

      13            A    Yes.

      14            Q    Okay.

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  Ms. Hartman, are you going to

      16       identify this as an exhibit or is it part of Exhibit 36

      17       as one of the items in there?

      18                 MS. HARTMAN:  It's already identified in

      19       staff's Confidential Composite Exhibit No. 36.  It's

      20       number 4 on that list on FPL's Response to Staff's

      21       Fourth Request for Production of Documents, No. 55A.

      22                 MR. BUTLER:  Okay, thank you.

      23                 MS. HARTMAN:  Sure.

      24       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      25            Q    Can you tell me how much grant money FPL
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       1       requested for this grant?

       2            A    Yes.  We filed a total project cost of

       3       $578 million, but out of that we requested funding for

       4       $200 million worth of that project.

       5            Q    And do you know if your grant request has been

       6       awarded?

       7            A    Yes, I know that it has not yet been awarded.

       8            Q    When do you expect to receive information

       9       about whether that grant's been awarded?

      10            A    We expect sometime around October or November.

      11            Q    If awarded, when would those funds be

      12       available to FPL?

      13            A    The way that the DOE has set this up is that

      14       we would be sending the DOE a bill as we make the

      15       expenditures, so as we spend the money for these

      16       projects, we essentially bill, in essence, the DOE and

      17       then the DOE will give us the funds back.

      18            Q    And are you expecting that if the grant is

      19       awarded that you would receive grant monies in 2010 and

      20       the 2011 time period?

      21            A    Yes.

      22            Q    And do you know if the grant money will be

      23       used to offset money in the rate base?

      24            A    Yes, I do.  It will not.

      25            Q    Could you please explain?
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       1            A    Sure.  I was going to ask you if you wanted me

       2       to explain that.

       3            Q    Yes.

       4            A    Okay.  All right.  So we have been planning to

       5       do this, our AMI project, you know, for a little while

       6       now.  As I've told you earlier, we have been looking at

       7       the different technologies and all of that.  So what I'm

       8       going to call the base AMI project, which is what's

       9       included in this rate case, is something that we were

      10       planning to do.  When the DOE came forth with this

      11       grant, it was really to stimulate investment in new

      12       things.  So -- and also what they're looking for are

      13       smart grid investments, end-to-end type projects, so not

      14       just AMI, but the whole -- from, you know, the

      15       transmission system, distribution system and making that

      16       whole grid smart.

      17                 So what we have done is that in our grant

      18       proposal we have included additional projects that we

      19       were not planning to do in the areas of transmission,

      20       distribution, home area networks.  It includes, for

      21       example, pilots at a thousand homes where the customers

      22       will be given home energy controllers, smart appliances,

      23       those types of things to help them understand how to use

      24       energy.  So none of those things were included in our

      25       rate case.
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       1                 In addition, related to AMI, what we have

       2       proposed with the DOE is that some of the meters that we

       3       were planning to do later in the deployment we will

       4       accelerate, so we will accelerate the deployment of AMI

       5       and we will do more AMI deployment in 2010 and 2011.

       6       Specifically we will do 150,000 more each year of the

       7       residential/small business AMI that I had talked about

       8       earlier.  And in addition to that, we also will do Smart

       9       Meters for the large customers, because, as I mentioned

      10       earlier, what we're doing for our AMI project is only

      11       for the residential and the small business.  So it

      12       includes 85,000 commercial meters that are also not in

      13       the current rate case forecast.

      14                 So everything is incremental, the $200 million

      15       that we are requesting is all incremental.  So it's

      16       those two pieces of meters which are some large

      17       commercial meters, it's the advancement of the

      18       residential and business meters that we were going to do

      19       later, we're going to do them earlier if we get the

      20       money, and then it includes automation in the

      21       transmission, distribution and customers' homes.

      22            Q    Thank you, Ms. Santos.  And does FPL have any

      23       discretion about how the grant money is applied?

      24            A    I'm not sure what you mean by "discretion."

      25       Clearly what we have put forth to the DOE, if they
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       1       approve it and give us this grant, we would be expected

       2       to comply with it and do the projects that they are

       3       giving us the grant for, so I don't think we have a

       4       whole lot of discretion.

       5                 I know that once the DOE gives -- awards you,

       6       then you, you know, will have negotiations with them

       7       about maybe details of the project, but my understanding

       8       is that whatever we put forth here is what we will be

       9       doing.

      10            Q    Okay.  But FPL didn't structure their

      11       application in such a way or make a request that the

      12       grant money be applied to rate base, is that correct?

      13            A    Can you repeat that?  I'm sorry.

      14            Q    Let me ask it this way:  Was there any way for

      15       FPL to apply for the grant in such a way that would

      16       result in a reduction of rate base, that the funds could

      17       be used to reduce rate base?

      18            A    Yeah, there was a smaller -- the way that the

      19       DOE grant worked was that for what they called -- and

      20       I'm trying to look for the right name.  I think that

      21       they called them small projects.  For small projects

      22       they would grant up to $20 million and then for large

      23       projects they grant up to $200 million.  And so we could

      24       have applied for a small project grant, possibly for

      25       AMI, but, you know, we didn't think that we had a lot of
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       1       chances of getting that because the -- what they're

       2       really looking for are projects that are end-to-end,

       3       that are doing something new, that are stimulating the

       4       economy, that are doing something that you weren't

       5       planning to do.  So we didn't think that we were going

       6       to be successful in that endeavor.

       7            Q    Thank you.  If I could --

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Excuse me just a

       9       moment.  Commissioner Skop, did you have a question?

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair,

      11       just on that line of questioning with respect to the

      12       proposed grant.

      13                 So would it then be correct to understand,

      14       based on Ms. Hartman's comments and your response, that

      15       you could not have requested a grant that would have

      16       offset the cost of the advanced meters to install them

      17       widespread through your service territory?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  That's our understanding,

      19       because what the DOE wants is for you to do new things,

      20       right, to stimulate the economy, and that was part of

      21       the purpose of it.  So the AMI project was something

      22       that we were already planning to do, so, you know, it

      23       wouldn't be right for us to be asking for money to do

      24       something that we were already planning to do.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  So in a nutshell, the
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       1       money that you're requesting for the grant will be used

       2       internally to do new things, but it won't be used to

       3       offset the ultimate cost for ratepayers, is that

       4       correct?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  The costs that are included in

       6       this rate case will not be offset, but the ratepayers

       7       are going to get the benefits of $200 million worth of

       8       projects.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      10       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      11            Q    Ms. Santos, I want to follow up on a couple of

      12       questions that Mr. Wright asked you earlier about the

      13       FPL Energy Services flyers.  I think you indicated

      14       earlier that FPL Energy Services provides services to

      15       FPL customers, is that correct?

      16            A    Yes.

      17            Q    And do those services include PowerShield and

      18       PowerSurge?

      19            A    Yes.  Yes.

      20            Q    Okay.  Could you --

      21            A    Hold on, PowerShield, SurgeShield.

      22            Q    I'm sorry.

      23            A    SurgeShield and PowerSurge.  The names get

      24       confusing.

      25            Q    Right.  SurgeShield and PowerSurge.
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       1            A    Yes.

       2            Q    Thank you.  And could you briefly explain what

       3       those services are?

       4            A    Sure.  SurgeShield is a device that protects

       5       customers' appliances from any type of damage from

       6       lightning or power surges, so it's a device that is

       7       placed in the meter that protects the home devices;

       8       whereas PowerSurge is an insurance program, so it's an

       9       insurance program where customers can pay to have their

      10       appliances covered against any type of loss from

      11       lightning or power surges.

      12            Q    Okay.  Now, if a customer signs up for FPL

      13       Energy Services and they don't pay for their SurgeShield

      14       or their PowerSurge program, what happens with regard to

      15       their FPL services?  Do their bills get cut off, or --

      16            A    No, definitely not.  When these programs were

      17       put in place several years ago, our systems were changed

      18       so -- to ensure -- or modified, I should say, to ensure

      19       that the amount of money associated with these programs

      20       would not go into the amounts that are used to determine

      21       a customer's disconnect amount, final notices, all of

      22       that.  So essentially what happens is we only disconnect

      23       customers for the amount of FPL-related dollars they owe

      24       us, and if they owe any money to FPL Energy Services, I

      25       think typically what FPL Energy Services is, after a
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       1       couple of months, then the customer just is no longer on

       2       that service.

       3            Q    Okay.  And does FPL receive calls concerning

       4       the services provided by FPL Energy Services?

       5            A    Yes.  Even though there's always, you know,

       6       phone numbers on the FPL Energy Services flyers telling

       7       customers to specifically call a number that's an FPL

       8       Energy Services number, customers do end up calling us

       9       every so often.

      10            Q    And does FPL also receive complaints

      11       concerning the services provided by FPL Energy Services?

      12            A    We have received what I call inquiries, which

      13       sometimes are complaints and sometimes are not.  So an

      14       inquiry can be something as simple as, you know, I'm

      15       calling because I need to file a claim and I don't have

      16       the phone number of where to file it.  It could be

      17       something, you know, related to the bills or whatever.

      18       So I have a count of the number of inquiries that we

      19       have received, and actually it's in my late-filed

      20       exhibit.

      21            Q    Okay.  And so does FPL keep a record of the

      22       complaints even, I guess, if you keep them in the

      23       category of inquiries?  Do you still keep track of those

      24       complaints?

      25            A    Yes.  I filed that in Late-Filed Exhibit No.
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       1       4.

       2            Q    Okay.  Are customers made aware that services

       3       provided by FPL Energy Services are not a part of the

       4       services provided by FPL?

       5            A    That is done in the materials that are used to

       6       market FPL Energy Services.

       7            Q    So the customers kind of need to know by

       8       looking at the flyers to obtain that information?

       9            A    Yes.  We don't -- FPL doesn't do anything

      10       proactively, if that's what you mean.

      11            Q    Okay.  Do you know within your inquiry records

      12       whether FPL has received customer complaints that --

      13       basically regarding that customers didn't know the

      14       services were not provided by FPL?

      15            A    I'm looking through the various reasons for

      16       the inquiries, so give me a minute, please.

      17                 That's not something that seems to have

      18       happened, from the data that I have.  I can tell you the

      19       types of things that we've seen, but that's not

      20       something that has been an issue.

      21            Q    Okay.  And just to clarify for me, I think you

      22       may have answered this earlier, the billing inserts are

      23       the way that customers are kind of made aware of FPL's

      24       service energy coverage limitations?

      25            A    Well, if I can clarify that a little bit, so
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       1       FPL Energy Services has several products and services

       2       that it provides.  Some of those products are insurance

       3       type -- there's insurance type products and there's a

       4       warranty type product.  So by coverage and limitations,

       5       I'm assuming that you're interested in those types of

       6       programs.

       7                 And in the bill insert we have -- there's

       8       three programs of FPL Energy Services that have been

       9       included in FPL's bill insert, and those three are

      10       SurgeShield, PowerSurge and ApplianceGuard.  So those

      11       three programs, as I said, have been included in the

      12       bill insert.  Are those the ones that you're interested

      13       in?

      14            Q    Well, I guess my general question is, how

      15       would customers understand the coverage of the FPL

      16       Energy Services products?

      17            A    Got it.  Okay.  So when a customer signs up, a

      18       customer receives what is called a welcome kit, and that

      19       welcome kit is a very extensive -- a very extensive

      20       document that goes through all of the policy

      21       information.  I have a copy of a welcome kit if you

      22       would like one.  Would you like one?

      23            Q    I guess we would like one, thank you.

      24            A    Not a problem.  The one that I brought -- I

      25       just one brought one of them, I brought ApplianceGuard
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       1       as an example, and we can --

       2                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Are we talking about

       3       an exhibit or just --

       4                 MS. HARTMAN:  I think we're talking about an

       5       exhibit.  If Mr. Butler and Ms. Santos could help me out

       6       with giving it a name?

       7                 MR. BUTLER:  ApplianceGuard Welcome Kit.

       8                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Is that going

       9       to be distributed?

      10                 Okay.  My understanding is that we are on 421,

      11       is that correct?  Hello?  421.

      12                 MR. BUTLER:  That's what I said.

      13                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  421.  What are we

      14       calling it again, Mr. Butler?

      15                 MR. BUTLER:  ApplianceGuard Welcome Kit.

      16                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, thank you.

      17                 (Exhibit No. 421 marked for identification.)

      18       BY MS. HARTMAN:

      19            Q    Ms. Santos, based on your experience with the

      20       customer calls and customer call centers and customer

      21       complaints, do you believe that the customers may be

      22       confused and think that FPL Energy Services and FPL are

      23       the same company?

      24            A    I think that they -- well, they clearly know

      25       that we are affiliated, for sure.  Some customers do end
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       1       up calling FPL, so, you know, they definitely know that

       2       it's, you know, it's affiliated with FPL.  They know if

       3       they have any problems they can call FPL and we will

       4       direct them, and, by the way, all those calls are

       5       tracked and the costs associated with those calls are

       6       charged to FPLES.

       7            Q    And I think we've talked a little bit earlier

       8       about the services that FPL provides to FPL Energy

       9       Services in terms of billing and receipt of some calls

      10       and complaints and/or inquiries.  Are there any other

      11       services that FPL provides to FPL Energy Services?

      12            A    The only other thing I can think of is the

      13       procurement of gas.

      14            Q    I'm sorry?

      15            A    Gas procurement.

      16            Q    Okay, and I only have a couple more questions

      17       for you.

      18                 Are you a customer of Florida Power & Light

      19       Company?

      20            A    Yes, I am.

      21            Q    Are you also a customer of FPL Energy

      22       Services?

      23            A    No, I am not.

      24            Q    Okay.  Do you personally recommend FPL Energy

      25       Services products to your friends and/or family?
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       1            A    Yeah.  I think that a lot of the -- many of

       2       the products that FPL Energy Services provides are

       3       products that are for a very specific group of

       4       customers.  You know, every customer is different.

       5       Every customer has different customer needs.  So, for

       6       example, the ApplianceGuard program is for customers

       7       that are very worried about having some type of a

       8       surprise as far as -- in their budgets as far as the

       9       cost of the repair of equipment, and they can't deal

      10       with that and would rather know that, if that ever

      11       happens, it's going to be $50.  So there is a customer

      12       segment that is interested in that, that has that need.

      13       We only have about 2,800 customers on that program.

      14                 So, you know, I don't have any warranty type

      15       programs.  You know, I'm not in that customer segment,

      16       and so it's not something that -- I don't have that

      17       need.  So the products that they provide are definitely

      18       products that are very good in the specific customer

      19       segment, just like any other product.

      20            Q    Thank you, Ms. Santos.  That's all the

      21       questions I have for you tonight.

      22                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Additional questions

      23       from the bench?  Commissioner McMurrian?

      24                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Thank you, Madam

      25       Chairman.
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       1                 Ms. Santos, I had a few just -- well, kind of

       2       all-over-the-place questions, so bear with me a moment.

       3                 I first wanted to ask you about your customer

       4       deposits policy, and I guess I'll ask you to briefly

       5       explain how that works, but also if there's been any

       6       changes proposed and if there's been any changes in the

       7       last year, let's say that.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  You're interested in

       9       initial deposits and --

      10                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Not just the initial

      11       deposits, also whenever there's a request for an

      12       additional deposit because they're been some kind of

      13       poor payment history.

      14                 THE WITNESS:  So we'll start with initial,

      15       or --

      16                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  That's fine.

      17                 THE WITNESS:  All right.  So for an initial

      18       deposit, what we do is, when a customer calls us to

      19       establish service, we get their name, their Social

      20       Security number, and we send that out to Equifax, which

      21       is a credit-scoring company.  Based on that credit

      22       score, we make a determination as to whether a customer

      23       should provide us with an initial deposit or not.

      24                 So we do that, and then from that we decide

      25       the amount based on the billing history of that premise,
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       1       and it's -- we do two months' worth of deposit, so, you

       2       know, two months, two times the average bill.

       3                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  And that's the

       4       maximum, is that what you said?

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  So that's pretty much for

       6       initial deposits, how it works.  It ends up that about

       7       50 percent of our customers are waived a deposit.

       8                 The other thing that we do, that we started

       9       doing, especially when the economy started

      10       deteriorating, to try to help our customers, was we

      11       started offering customers the option of waiving their

      12       deposit if they would sign up for automatic bill pay.

      13       So that was a way that we felt was a good way to

      14       balance, you know, the risk of that customer having bad

      15       debt but yet giving them, you know, an option, because

      16       we feel that at least, if they have automatic bill pay,

      17       there's more chance of them paying their bill on time.

      18       So we provided the customers, started providing

      19       customers with the waiver, and then for some customers

      20       it was just a reduction of that.

      21                 So for initial, that's pretty much how it

      22       works.

      23                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay, that's fine.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  So then what happens is, as a

      25       customer, you know, has a history with us, if their

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1662

       1       deposit amount that we have on hand is $50 -- the

       2       difference between the deposit that we need and the

       3       deposit that we have on hand is $50 or more, then we

       4       start taking a look at them as far as their payment

       5       history.  If they are late with us two times in the last

       6       six months, then we adjust that deposit amount.  So

       7       let's say if it was -- if we needed $100 in order to go

       8       back to the two-month amount, then we'd adjust the

       9       deposit and ask them for another hundred dollars.

      10                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  So you just -- so

      11       you're always -- Madam Chair?

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Please.

      13                 THE WITNESS:  I want to be sure you

      14       understand, so --

      15                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  So automatically

      16       you're in some way always looking at all your customers

      17       to see what the differential is on what kind of deposit

      18       you think you need based on their usage, and so it's

      19       just always being calculated, in a sense?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  It's constantly being

      21       calculated.  Our system calculates it all the time, and

      22       actually I forgot to mention, you have to be -- it's the

      23       $50 gap, it's late two times within six months, and then

      24       it's also we look at the payment history in addition to

      25       that, the length of service.  So we have a behavioral
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       1       model that does some of that, and so we look at, you

       2       know, a lot of different factors.

       3                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay, so it's not

       4       necessarily that once you have that $50 differential

       5       that there will be some request for a deposit.  It also

       6       depends on --

       7                 THE WITNESS:  No, no, no, you have to have bad

       8       payment, you know, late payment behavior.

       9                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Thank you.  And have

      10       there been any changes to that in the last year?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  We have been actually --

      12       what did we do for -- for residential deposits we have

      13       just been, you know, looking at our models and the

      14       scores and adjusting exactly, you know, when it would be

      15       that we would charge that.  So we've just been -- well,

      16       what we saw, Commissioner, was that last year it was

      17       almost like our data was showing us that a new group of

      18       customers were starting to be bad on their payments and

      19       our writeoffs went up dramatically in 2008.  So as part

      20       of that, we are -- our assessments showed that there was

      21       almost like, you know, this new group.  And so we had to

      22       adjust some of the thresholds that we use in order to

      23       try to minimize that.

      24                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.  That's

      25       essentially what I was asking is I think we've been

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1664

       1       hearing a lot about the customer deposits and changes in

       2       customer deposit policies throughout the state.

       3                 THE WITNESS:  It's just that we have been just

       4       adjusting it and making it tighter for the customer

       5       segments that we're seeing writeoffs on.

       6                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.  And a couple

       7       of other questions I think kind of along that line but

       8       not exactly with the deposits, does FPL allow customers

       9       to adjust their billing date, not on a one-time basis,

      10       but regularly, in order to better match their needs?

      11       So, for instance, if the bill is normally due on the 5th

      12       of the month and it was easier for them to change it to

      13       a different date, do y'all allow that?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, we have a program that we

      15       call 62-Plus where we allow that.

      16                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Is that something

      17       offered just to a certain segment of customers?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  It's offered mostly to people

      19       that are on a fixed income, our seniors.

      20                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.  But if just

      21       any residential customer called and wanted to change

      22       their billing due date, is that something that's

      23       allowed?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  I would have to check my -- I

      25       think that it's supposed to be seniors and low income.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  I need to check on that.

       3                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  I did see that, the

       4       62-Plus described in your testimony.

       5                 And then with respect to the budget billing

       6       that you talk about a little bit in there, how is that

       7       -- I remember one customer, and I actually can't

       8       remember which case it was in, but one customer had

       9       asked me about or had talked to me a little bit about

      10       the budget billing program and how it gets readjusted

      11       based on changes in usage.  So if you have really hot

      12       summer months, how soon does that levelized payment get

      13       adjusted after there's some kind of spike in usage?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  Every -- what we do is we carry

      15       what is called a deferred balance, so any change from

      16       the bill that the customer's paying versus the budget

      17       bill is carried in what we call a deferred balance.  So

      18       that sometimes is a positive number, sometimes it's a

      19       negative number.  So depending on whether the customer

      20       has, you know, paid more or less, so depending on the

      21       season, and so that customer carries that deferred

      22       balance, you know, throughout.

      23                 There's other companies that have like a

      24       true-up adjustment at the end of the year and it causes

      25       customers all sorts of concern because then all -- you
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       1       know, here they are having budget bill and then all of a

       2       sudden they get this bigger amount.  Our program is not

       3       like that.  It pretty much levelizes it and the customer

       4       carries this deferred balance.

       5                 Now, if the customer wants to leave the

       6       program then we have to deal with the deferred balance,

       7       and sometimes the deferred balance is money that they

       8       owe us or sometimes the differed balance is the other

       9       way around, money that we owe them.

      10                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.  So it's not

      11       adjusted even once a year, it just accumulates

      12       throughout their service?

      13                 THE WITNESS:  It's constant.

      14                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay.  And I think

      15       just actually two more questions.

      16                 When I think Ms. Bradley was asking you about

      17       the AMI and the differences in the -- actually she was

      18       asking about the differences in the billing periods,

      19       about how some customers were billed for 32 days and

      20       some for 28, and you said that would go away with AMI,

      21       will that go away as soon as the customer gets their

      22       AMI, gets their new meter, or is that something that

      23       will be implemented later?

      24                 THE WITNESS:  It's as soon as we -- as soon as

      25       we transfer billing to an electronic fashion.  So it's
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       1       not the minute that you get the meter, because a lot of

       2       things have to happen.  So there's a lag there, but

       3       it's, you know, a several-months kind of lag.

       4                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay, thank you.

       5                 And one more with respect to the grant

       6       application, and you said that you were requesting

       7       funding of 200 million.  Is that the max that you could

       8       request under that grant?

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, it is.

      10                 COMMISSIONER McMURRIAN:  Okay, thank you.

      11                 Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Certainly.

      13                 Commissioner Skop?

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.

      15                 Good evening, Ms. Santos.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Good evening.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Now, at page 41 of your

      18       prefiled testimony beginning with lines 7 and 8, you

      19       refer to the operational savings that will result from

      20       the AMIs, particularly the costs associated with meter

      21       readings.  I guess on the interrogatories -- and I see

      22       some handwritten numbers on some.  I don't know which --

      23       if I could refer to staff, what would be the proper

      24       number to refer to?  It's the interrogatories on 173 and

      25       175, but I see handwritten numbers in the top right
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       1       corner.  So what is the appropriate way to refer to

       2       those documents?

       3                 MS. HARTMAN:  I don't know if I'm doing it the

       4       proper way, but I've just identified them as FPL's

       5       Response to Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

       6       Interrogatory No. 173, for example.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Maybe I'm looking

       8       at some handwritten numbers that are copied --

       9                 MS. HARTMAN:  Oh, I'm sorry, those handwritten

      10       numbers are for my identification later when I need to

      11       put them into the record.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, thank you.

      13                 Ms. Santos, if I could turn your attention to

      14       Staff's 13th Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No.

      15       249 and Interrogatory 250, and also Interrogatory 243 --

      16       I'll give you a second to look at those.

      17                 MR. BUTLER:  I'm sorry, Commissioner.  I'm not

      18       sure that she's going to have immediate access to that.

      19       I need to check with her about -- do you have --

      20                 THE WITNESS:  I have the set, I was given the

      21       set so I think I'm good.

      22                 Okay, so I have 249 in front of me.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  On 249 the response

      24       was that there currently are 553 meter readers as of

      25       June 2009, is that correct?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then following

       3       that along to Interrogatory No. 250, it shows the number

       4       of meter readers that will be replaced due to AMI, so

       5       therefore that would be the expected realized labor

       6       savings as a result of rolling out AMI.

       7                 I guess in 2015-2018, the cumulative meter

       8       readers are -- reductions are 452, and I guess I was

       9       looking at the number of meter readers and subtracting

      10       the number on Interrogatory 249 from the number at the

      11       bottom of Interrogatory 250, I come out with 101 meter

      12       readers that should be left, but on Interrogatory 251, I

      13       guess it indicates there will be 119 meter readers after

      14       the AMI meter readers are deployed.  Is there something

      15       I'm missing there?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  I think it's just the difference

      17       between the June number versus the numbers that were in

      18       the forecast.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, thank you.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  You know, the June '09 number

      21       versus the number that's in the forecast.  That's all.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, thank you.

      23                 On Interrogatory 243, which is, I guess, HFHA

      24       or -- it's late -- SFHHA's Fifth Set of Interrogatories,

      25       Interrogatory No. 243, it indicates that --
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Hold on, hold on.

       2                 I have it.  The Fifth -- SFHHA's -- which one?

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  The Fifth Set of

       4       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 243.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  243, hold on.

       6                 MR. BUTLER:  It may help that it has the

       7       number 30 written up in the right-hand corner.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That would have been the

      10       easy way.  That's the way I was trying to do it.

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  It indicates that

      13       the approximate savings as a result of the

      14       implementation of AMI and the reduced meter reading

      15       costs would be $36 million annually, is that correct?

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Actually it should be 36.9

      17       million, and I had mentioned that to staff in my

      18       deposition.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, great, thank you.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  But it's not just the meter

      21       reading, so it's meter reading and some field

      22       collections, a bit in customer care, so it's total.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay, thank you.

      24                 One final question:  On page 55 of your

      25       prefiled testimony, on lines 1 and 2 you talk about the
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       1       proposed service charge of $100 versus the full cost of

       2       135.95.  What makes up that cost to the extent that the

       3       meter, whether it be an AMI meter or a regular meter,

       4       would be typically recovered in base rates?  Is that the

       5       labor component of installing the hardware?

       6                 THE WITNESS:  Yeah, hold on a second.  Let me

       7       get you that.

       8                 Okay.  So the initial connect charge has

       9       several components, I mean -- so everything from

      10       receiving the call that, you know, that the customer's

      11       calling in to any customer accounting that is done as a

      12       result of it, sending the field crew out to do the

      13       installation and to do the final connection.  It does

      14       not include the cost of the meter.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And, I guess, would

      16       an initial connect be, for instance, if a home was being

      17       built, the contractor actually contacting FPL for

      18       temporary service, or would it be the first residents of

      19       the home?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  It would be the first residents

      21       is what this initial connect is about, but it's not for

      22       temporary service.  That would be something -- a

      23       different charge.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  I'll skip my other

      25       questions related to the ApplianceGuard.  I made
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       1       comments at the service hearing, and I think

       2       Representative Sands made similar comments also, and

       3       I'll leave it at that.  Thank you.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Okay, thank you.

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

       6                 Any additional Commissioner questions?

       7                 I think that brings us to redirect.  Mr.

       8       Butler?

       9                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.  Just

      10       a very few.

      11                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      12       BY MR. BUTLER:

      13            Q    Ms. Santos, you were asked earlier about the

      14       circumstance where FPL might be receiving money through

      15       the DOE grant application, as a result of the DOE grant

      16       application, and how that would be applied to FPL's

      17       investment in future, you know, equipment, facilities

      18       that it would use that money to help fund.

      19                 Do you know the accounting that would apply if

      20       FPL receives grant money, how that would affect what

      21       would be shown on the plant and service balances for

      22       those investments?

      23            A    I'm not the accountant, but my understanding

      24       is that the way that it would work is similar to a

      25       contribution in aid of construction where, you know, we
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       1       get the money and then it's reduced from the -- it's

       2       shown in rate base and then it's reduced from rate base

       3       through a contribution in aid of construction.

       4            Q    So as a result of the contribution in aid of

       5       construction, would the future plant and service

       6       balances be lower than they would be if there had not

       7       been grant money received?

       8            A    Yes.

       9            Q    Okay.  And at such time as FPL's rates were

      10       reset or for surveillance purposes, you would have a

      11       lower plant balance as a result of the CIAC-like

      12       contribution?

      13            A    Yes.

      14            Q    What customer classes do the AMI -- would the

      15       AMI meters be used for?

      16            A    The costs for the residential meters are being

      17       allocated to the residential customer charge and the

      18       costs associated with the business meters are being

      19       allocated to the general service class.

      20            Q    Okay.  And the general service class is

      21       that --

      22            A    The non-demand, I'm sorry.  The general

      23       service non-demand.

      24            Q    Are those large or small commercial customers?

      25            A    Small.
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       1            Q    Okay.  With that allocation, would any of the

       2       costs of the AMI meters be recovered from the large

       3       commercial/industrial customers that would take service

       4       through things like the GSLD 2 or 3 rates?

       5            A    No.

       6            Q    Okay.  Do you know what rate classes the

       7       members of FIPUG are served under?

       8            A    I would think it's GSLD, those types.

       9            Q    So would FIPUG members pay any of the costs

      10       associated with the AMI meters?

      11            A    I believe not.  To verify that, Renae Deaton

      12       would be the one to verify that, but that is my

      13       understanding of how the allocation has been done.

      14            Q    Thank you.

      15                 Ms. Santos, would you expect that if a

      16       customer could afford a new home, it would be reasonable

      17       to assume that they could pay a $100 connect fee?

      18            A    I would think so.

      19            Q    And would you expect that if a customer

      20       qualifies for financing for a new home, that they would

      21       have reasonably good credit?

      22            A    Yes.

      23            Q    Is a good credit rating one of the measures by

      24       which a customer can have the deposit requirement

      25       waived?
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       1            A    Yes.

       2            Q    Thank you.

       3                 MR. BUTLER:  Those are all the redirect

       4       questions that I have.

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

       6                 Okay, I believe that brings us to exhibits,

       7       so, Mr. Butler, we will start with you.

       8                 MR. BUTLER:  Thank you.

       9                 I would move the admission of Exhibits 73

      10       through 75.

      11                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  73, 74, 75, any

      12       objections?

      13                 Hearing none, please show those admitted into

      14       the record.

      15                 (Exhibit Nos. 73 through 75 admitted into the

      16       record.)

      17                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And Mr. Wright?

      18                 MR. WRIGHT:  Madam Chairman, I move Exhibit

      19       420.

      20                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Hearing no objections,

      21       Exhibit 420 will be moved into the record at this time.

      22                 (Exhibit No. 420 admitted into the record.)

      23                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Staff, 421.

      24                 MS. HARTMAN:  We have -- 421 would be the

      25       ApplianceGuard Welcome Kit.
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       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Yes.  Any objections?

       2                 Hearing none, 421 will be entered into the

       3       record at this time.

       4                 (Exhibit No. 421 admitted into the record.)

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  And then I believe

       6       that brings us to the staff composite exhibit.

       7                 MS. HARTMAN:  Yes, and we have a bundle of

       8       interrogatories, and they are all from staff -- they are

       9       all listed on Staff Composite Exhibit 35.

      10                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Is that the pink

      11       sheet?

      12                 MS. HARTMAN:  That's the pink sheet.

      13                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Does everybody have --

      14       has everybody -- start over.  Has everybody had a chance

      15       to review the pink sheet for this purpose?  I'm not

      16       hearing any nos, so I take that as a yes.

      17                 Is there a need to go through them one by one

      18       or can we just refer to it as the pink sheet labeled

      19       Staff's Composite Exhibit 35?

      20                 MS. HARTMAN:  I'm sorry, can I confer with --

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Yes, you may.

      22                 MR. WRIGHT:  Madam Chairman?

      23                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Mr. Wright.

      24                 MR. WRIGHT:  I'm as anxious to leave as

      25       anyone, but I fear that it's going to be two
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       1       interrogatories out of Item 17 and six interrogatories

       2       out of Item --

       3                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  I'm open to

       4       suggestion, Mr. Wright, if there's a good way to most

       5       efficiently and effectively do what we need to do.

       6                 MR. WRIGHT:  I think the staff has already

       7       been using the best way, which is to go through and tell

       8       us which ones are coming in at which time so we

       9       ultimately now which ones are in.  Sorry.

      10                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay, then -- it was

      11       worth a try, Mr. Wright, but I want clarity, absolutely.

      12                 So, Ms. Hartman, can you walk was through it?

      13                 MS. HARTMAN:  Sure, I would be glad to.

      14                 Item 2 -- on the first interrogatories, item

      15       2, it's from the composite list, it's item 2,

      16       Interrogatory No. 15.

      17                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.  Just keep

      18       going, but just kind of slowly so we can hear you.

      19                 MS. HARTMAN:  Item 3, FPL's response to

      20       Staff's Fourth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No.

      21       20; item 3, FPL's Response to Staff's Fourth Set of

      22       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 21; item 3, FPL's

      23       Response to Staff's Fourth Set of Interrogatories,

      24       Interrogatory No. 25; item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's

      25       Tenth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 169;

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1678

       1       item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's Tenth Set of

       2       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 170; item 8, FPL's

       3       Response to Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

       4       Interrogatory No. 171; item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's

       5       Tenth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 172;

       6       item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's Tenth Set of

       7       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 173; item 8, FPL's

       8       Response to Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

       9       Interrogatory No. 174; item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's

      10       Tenth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 175;

      11       item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's Tenth Set of

      12       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 176; item 8, FPL's

      13       Response to Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

      14       Interrogatory No. 177; item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's

      15       Tenth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 178;

      16       item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's Tenth Set of

      17       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 179; item 8, FPL's

      18       Response to Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

      19       Interrogatories No. 180; item 8, FPL's Response to

      20       Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No.

      21       181; item 8, FPL's Response to Staff's Tenth Set of

      22       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 182; item 8, FPL's

      23       Response to Staff's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

      24       Interrogatory No. 183; item 11, FPL's Response to

      25       Staff's 13th Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No.
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       1       249; item 11, FPL's Response to Staff's 13th Set of

       2       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 250; item 11, FPL's

       3       Response to Staff's 13th Set of Interrogatories,

       4       Interrogatory No. 251; item 11, FPL's Response to

       5       Staff's 13th Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No.

       6       252; item 11, FPL's Response to Staff's 13th Set of

       7       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 253; item 11, FPL's

       8       Response to Staff's 13th Set of Interrogatories,

       9       Interrogatory No. 267; item 18, FPL's Response to OPC's

      10       Sixth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 279;

      11       item 18, FPL's Response to OPC's Sixth Set of

      12       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 282; item 22, FPL's

      13       Response to City of South Daytona's First Set of

      14       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 12; item 30, FPL's

      15       Response to South Florida Hospital and Healthcare

      16       Association's Fifth Set of Interrogatories,

      17       Interrogatory No. 242; item 30, FPL's Response to South

      18       Florida Hospital and Healthcare Association's Fifth Set

      19       of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 243; item 32,

      20       FPL's Response to South Florida Hospital and Healthcare

      21       Association's Tenth Set of Interrogatories,

      22       Interrogatory No. 283; item 32, FPL's Response to South

      23       Florida Hospital and Healthcare Association's Tenth Set

      24       of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 289; item 33,

      25       FPL's Response to South Florida Hospital and Healthcare
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       1       Association's 11th set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory

       2       No. 305; item 33, FPL's Response to South Florida

       3       Hospital and Healthcare Association's 11th set of

       4       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 306; item 37, FPL's

       5       Response to Staff's Third Set of Interrogatories,

       6       Interrogatory No. 27; item 37, FPL's Response to Staff's

       7       Third Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 28; item

       8       38, FPL's Response to Staff's Fifth Set of

       9       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 64; item 36, FPL's

      10       Response to Staff's Sixth Set of Interrogatories,

      11       Interrogatory No. 76; item 39, FPL's Response to Staff's

      12       Sixth Set of Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 77; item

      13       41, FPL's Response to Staff's Eighth Set of

      14       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 107; and finally,

      15       item 42, FPL's Response to OPC's First Set of

      16       Interrogatories, Interrogatory No. 70.

      17                 And just for clarification, the first item was

      18       item 2, which was FPL's Response to Staff's Third Set of

      19       Interrogatories Interrogatory No. 15.

      20                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Generally I would

      21       repeat that back, but I'm not going to.  So the list

      22       that Ms. Hartman has gone through for us and that I am

      23       hopeful that the court reporter has taken down

      24       copiously, of course, any concerns or objections?

      25                 Hearing none, the list that Ms. Hartman has
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       1       gone through is entered into the record at this time.

       2                 (Staff Composite Exhibit No. 35, Item Nos. 2,

       3       3, 8, 11, 18, 22, 30, 32, 33, 36, 37, 38, 39, 41 and 42

       4       as heretofore described, admitted into the record.)

       5                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Are there any other

       6       matters pertaining to this witness, who I believe will

       7       be back at some time in the future for rebuttal?

       8                 MS. HARTMAN:  Madam Chair, I've got more.

       9                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Ms. Hartman?

      10                 MS. HARTMAN:  This is an item on Staff's

      11       Confidential Composite Exhibit 36.

      12                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Otherwise known as the

      13       yellow sheet.

      14                 MS. HARTMAN:  Right.  And this would be number

      15       4, FPL's Response to Staff's Fourth Request for

      16       Production of Documents, No. 55-A.

      17                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  Any concerns or

      18       objections about that item at this time?

      19                 Seeing none, show that entered into the

      20       record.

      21                 (Staff Confidential Composite Exhibit No. 36,

      22       Item 4, as heretofore described, admitted into the

      23       record.)

      24                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Commissioner Skop?

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

                  FOR THE RECORD REPORTING TALLAHASSEE FLORIDA 850.222.5491

                                                                      1682

       1                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  I hope it's not the

       2       exhibit I just entered.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  No, not at all.

       4                 It's late.  If staff could, just for the

       5       people that may be watching or reviewing the proceeding,

       6       just briefly explain why it was necessary to go through

       7       that long rigorous process, that might be beneficial.

       8                 MS. BENNETT:  Certainly.

       9                 The -- usually staff enters a composite

      10       exhibit and it has all of the interrogatories and

      11       production.  We've been working for several months, plus

      12       we review all of the Intervenors' interrogatories and

      13       PODs and we select those that we believe will fill out

      14       the record for you all to make a decision.

      15                 The Intervenors have a right to review all

      16       those documents, and because of the number of documents

      17       provided, I think they wanted to hear from the witnesses

      18       to explain what those are, so we have to enter them

      19       individually at this time.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.  Thank you.

      21                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Thank you.

      22                 Okay.  Any other matters pertaining to this

      23       witness?

      24                 Hearing none, you're excused.  We look forward

      25       to seeing you again on rebuttal.
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       1                 Before we adjourn for the evening, my

       2       understanding is that -- well, first of all, we will

       3       reconvene at 9:30 on Monday.  My understanding, per the

       4       discussion that we had earlier, is that the first

       5       witness will be Witness Baron.  Is that everybody else's

       6       understanding as well?

       7                 Okay.  All right.  Then on Monday at 9:30 we

       8       will begin with any preliminary matters that may arise

       9       between now and then, then we will take up Witness

      10       Baron.  I also understand that then -- that we also have

      11       an understanding that Witness Spoor has a kind of time

      12       certain at three o'clock is the request and the

      13       agreement of the parties and staff.

      14                 Okay.  Then with that understanding, that will

      15       be our plan for Monday morning, but I do want to make

      16       sure that I'm very clear, I hope my earlier comments

      17       were that hopefully our Chairman will be back Monday,

      18       feeling up to it Monday, and I will defer to his, of

      19       course, direction and decisions should there be any

      20       changes needed.  So we have a plan and we will let him

      21       work our way through it.

      22                 Anything else -- we need to get the red

      23       folders.  We need to get the red folders.

      24                 MS. BENNETT:  And for the parties, if they

      25       want to see the Spoor documents ahead of time, I've got
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       1       copies.

       2                 ACTING CHAIRMAN EDGAR:  Okay.  See Ms. Bennett

       3       for that if there is a desire.

       4                 Anything else that we need to address?

       5                 Hearing none, we are adjourned for the day.

       6                 (Hearing adjourned at 7:10 p.m.)

       7                 (The transcript continues in sequence with

       8       Volume 14.)
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